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Chairman’s Statement
BNk &

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of
Eagle Ride Investment Holdings Limited (“Eagle Ride”
or the “Company”), I am pleased to present the annual
report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2015.

During the period under review, the global economy
was full of challenges and uncertainties. Under the
situation of weak global economic growth, lack lustre
commodity prices (especially crude oil price), uncertain
monetary policy direction and intensifying currency
fluctuation, the Company took the situation under
control, prudently developed and sought improvement
with stability. Currently, the invested projects of the
Company comprise (1) E-Com Holdings Pte. Ltd., a
company principally engaging in the provision of Chinese
e-learning platforms. Chinese e-learning platforms are
available in most of the primary schools in Singapore
and its coverage is gradually expanding into other Asian
regions and the rest of the world. It is considered as the
most effective Chinese learning platform and medium; (2)
Vaca Energy, LLC, a company incorporated in Deleware
and continued in California, the United States of America,
the principal activities of which are crude oil and natural
gas exploitation, development, production and operation.
Affected by the sustained low international crude oil
prices, despite the overall evaluation was down as at 31
December 2015, however, Vaca Energy, LLC is able to seek
good development chances through the opportunities
brought by the trough energy industry. It can recover
losses under the measures of expanding enterprise
capacity such as expanding the number of oil wells,
equity increase and raising capital, fully prepared itself for
the development once the low energy industry situation
is turning around; and (3) the listed equity investment
held by the Company also recorded unrealised gain

respectively.

During the year, the Company issued corporate bonds
in principal amounts of HK$23,000,000 and market
capitalisation of the Company increased to approximately
HK$1,860 million as at 31 December 2015, proving

investors’ confidence in the Company.
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Chairman’s Statement
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Looking forward, the investment market is expected to
remain challenging in 2016. In spite of this, the Company
will continue to adopt and maintain a prudent investment
approach to capture attractive investment opportunities as
and when they arise. It will also strives for a sustainable
development and to bring the maximum returns for all

the shareholders.

Finally, T would like to take this opportunity to express
my sincere gratitude to the shareholders, management
staff and business partners of the Company for their
unremitting dedications. The management will, as always,
endeavour to deliver the best results possible so as to

reward the shareholders for their support to Eagle Ride.

TUNG Shu Sun

Chairman

31 March 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Eagle Ride Investment Holdings Limited is an investment
holding company. The Company’s investment instruments
are to be made in the form of equity securities or equity-
related securities or debt-related instruments in listed
and unlisted companies engaged in, but not limited
to, the oil sector. The investments normally are to be
made in enterprises which are established within their
respective fields. The Company may also seek to identify
investments where there are synergies with other investee

entities.

Year 2015 was challenging as the difficulties in the
business environment persisted, especially in the oil
sector. The business environment was mainly confined by
the austere external environment. The global economy
decelerated during the year and grew at its slowest pace
since the Global Financial Crisis, featured by the slow
and uneven recovery of advanced economies, notable
downward pressures on emerging market economies and
sharp declines in commodity prices. Of particular note

were the highly volatile global financial conditions.

Due to the adverse global economy, the years of high oil
prices in the range of US$§100 — $110 have not sustained
after the summer of 2014. Sharp declination in oil prices
continued into the following years. Crude oil price hit
US$37.04 per barrel as at the end of December 2015.
Amidst the backdrop of global economic slowdown, oil
prices have shown little signs of progress into the year of
2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company
continued its investments in both listed and unlisted
equity securities and other related financial assets.
As at 31 December 2015, the Company’s investment
portfolio was diversified and across different business
sectors including manufacturing, education, oilfield and

investment in securities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW
At the end of the reporting period, the Company’s

investment performances were as follows:

1. a net unrealised gain arising on revaluation of
financial assets designated as held for trading was
approximately HK$5,351,000; and

2. a net unrealised loss arising on revaluation of
financial assets designated as at fair value through

profit or loss was approximately HK$23,995,000.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Company did not derive revenue for the current and
last financial year. However, during the year the Company
made a net unrealised gain arising on revaluation
of financial assets designated as held for trading of
approximately HK$5,351,000 and a net unrealised loss
arising on revaluation of financial assets designated as
at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$23,995,000.

The net loss attributable to owners of the Company
was approximately HK$60,403,000, an increase
of approximately HK$35,200,000 from the loss of
approximately HK$25,203,000 in the last financial year.
The significant enlargement in loss was mainly due
to the sharp declination in oil prices which resulting
an unrealised loss on the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately HK$23,995,000.
However the losses were slightly offset by a decrease in
administrative and other operating expenses amounted at
approximately HK$8,526,000.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has cash and
cash equivalents of approximately HK$146,000 (2014:
approximately HK$87,000). The Company is fully aware
of the financial position and several measurements have
been carried out to improve the Company’s liquidity. The

measurements are as follows:

1. at the end of the reporting period, amongst the
financial assets designated as held for trading
was a listed equity investment at a fair value of
approximately HK$38,657,000 which could be
realised on the Stock Exchange at short notice to

provide liquid funds for the Group;

2. the Company had received HK$19,000,000
(equivalent to US$2,450,000) in cash in March
2016 from the purchaser to settle the remaining

consideration of the disposal of a subsidiary;

3. subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the
Company had obtained a loan from an independent
money lending company at a principal amount of
HK$10,000,000 which is repayable within one year
with no securities pledged nor guarantee and bearing

fixed interest rate at 10% per annum;

4. Mr. Hu, the ultimate controlling party, agreed to
provide continuous financial support to the Group to

meet its financial obligations;
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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5. the Directors are taking measures to tighten cost
controls over administrative and other operating
expenses aiming at improving the working capital
and cash flows position of the Group including

closely monitoring the daily operating expenses; and

6. the Directors are exploring the possibility to conduct

fund raising activities.

In view of the above, the Board believes that the Group
will have sufficient cash resources to satisfy its future

working capital and other financing requirements.

DIVIDENDS
The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the current year (2014: HK$nil).

During the year, there were no bonus shares issued
(2014: niD).

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio (total borrowings/total assets) as at 31
December 2015 was 33.81% (2013: 1.80%). The increment
was mainly due to the loans from a director, and the
issuance of the corporate bonds and net unrealised loss
arising on revaluation of financial assets designated as at

fair value through profit or loss.

LITIGATION
No outstanding litigation as at 31 December 2015 was
noted (2014: niD).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2015, the Company did not have any
contingent liabilities (2014: nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015, margin facility of approximately
HK$19,328,000 (2014: approximately HK$16,653,000)
from a regulated securities broker was granted to the
Group under which financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss of approximately HK$38,657,000 (2014:
approximately HK$33,306,000) were treated as collateral
for the facilities granted. No margin facility has been
utilised by the Group as at 31 December 2015 (2014: nil).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Company has foreign currency investments in
financial assets, which expose it to foreign currency
risk. The Group is mainly exposed to the effects of
fluctuation of the US$ and the S$. As the HK$ is pegged
to the US$, the Group considers the risk of movements
in exchange rates between the HK$ and the US$ to be
insignificant. Accordingly, their fluctuation is excluded
from the sensitivity analysis. If the exchange rate of HK$
against S$ has been increased/decreased by 5% (2014:
5%), the Group’s loss for the year would have been
decreased/increased by approximately HK$921,000 (2014:
approximately HK$1,354,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2015 the Group had 15 (2014: 19)
employees. The total employees remuneration was
approximately HK$8,064,000 (2014: approximately
HK$9,872,000) for the current financial year. The
Group’s emolument policies are formulated based on the
performance of individual employees and is reviewed

regularly every year.

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, the investment market is expected to
remain challenging in 2016. In spite of this, the Company
will continue to adopt and maintain a prudent investment
approach to capture attractive investment opportunities
as and when they arise. The Company will continue
fully leveraging its strong market analytical capability
and carefully identify the market trend through a flexible
investment strategy to bring the maximum returns for all
the shareholders.

With the extensive network and strong market analytical

capability of our management team, we are well-

positioned to target investments with growth potential.
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Biographical Details of Directors
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. CHAN Yiu Pun, Clement, aged 58, was appointed
an Executive Director of the Company on 1 November,
2013. He was an Executive Director and Authorised
Representative of Opes Asia Development Limited, a
company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
with stock code: 810, from September 2012 to October
2013. Mr. Chan had over 20 years of experience in the
financial industry, including professional management of
investments on behalf of third party investors through his
role in Opes Asia Development Limited and experiences
as responsible officers for type 4 (advising on securities)
and type 9 (asset management) regulated activities
under the Securities and Future Ordinance (“SFO”) for
a number of corporations including China International
Capital Limited from May 2007 to January 2013 and
Wealth Assets Management Limited from November 2005
to August 2012. In addition, Mr. Chan also served as a
responsible officer for type 4 (advising on securities)
regulated activity under the SFO of Gain Miles Financial
Planning Consultants Limited from February 2005 to
August 2006. Mr. Chan also worked in AIG Financial
Advisor Services, Limited (now known as AIA Wealth
Management Company Limited) from May 2000 to May
2003 with last position as director and head of the team
of wholesalers and Keen Shing Investment Consultants
Ltd (now known as China International Capital Limited)
from June 1996 to March 2000 with last position as

investment director.

He is a member of The Institute of Financial Planners of
Hong Kong Limited and also a Certified Financial Planner
in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan obtained a higher diploma in
accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now
known as the Polytechnic University of Hong Kong) in
November 1980 and a master of science in corporate
governance & directorship from the Hong Kong Baptist
University in November 2008.
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Biographical Details of Directors
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HU Haisong, aged 48, was appointed a Non-
executive Director of the Company on 1 November,
2013. He has a strong track record in pursuing cross-
border business opportunities primarily in the energy and
resources industry. Mr. Hu has substantial experience in
business management and management and supervision
of investment projects in various sectors and industries,
including oil and gas related industry, trading of
commodities and real estates. Mr. Hu is currently the
chairman and director of each of APAC Investment
Holdings Limited ("APAC”) and Eagle Ride Investments
Limited (“Eagle Ride Investments”). APAC is principally
engaged in investment holding focusing on the energy
sector and high growth private investments and Eagle
Ride Investments is an investment holding company.
Mr. Hu is also a director of Bluesea Energy Holdings
Limited, a limited liability company incorporated in Hong
Kong and is principally engaged in providing consultancy
services in the oil and gas related industry and the
trading of petroleum related products, including crude oil
and fuel oil. Mr. Hu obtained a Doctor degree in Business
Administration honoris causa by Dubna International

University for Nature, Society and Man in June 2013.

Mr. TUNG Shu Sun, aged 68, was appointed a Non-
executive Director of the Company on 1 November, 2013.
He used to be the chief executive officer of APAC. APAC
is principally engaged in investment holding focusing on
the energy sector and high growth private investments.
Mr. Tung was the executive director and the executive
deputy managing director of COSCO International
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange with stock code: 517, from December 1997 to
July 2003 and has extensive experiences in corporate
management, management of investment projects as
well as management and mergers and acquisitions
of listed companies. Mr. Tung joined China Ocean
Shipping (Group) Company since 1968 and served in
sea transportation, shipbuilding, container transportation,
external affairs and administrative management as well as

real estate and infrastructure.

Annual Report 2015 4§

EHITHEE

WM AR A 48K R —F —=F+—H
— HERAL AN w) IR BATE S - R
1 B Be IR OB IR AT 3 B 5 v R
A R S 1 AT Bk o B e AR TR 2 8 AR R AT
¥ (M EAHBATE EEM M XE
FE) Z B E W ARG B ARy
5 A RSB o B S A B 4 Bl s HE
EREERARAF ([FEME]) KEagle
Ride Investments Limited ([ Eagle Ride
Investments | ) Z T/ K#EH - FEMEZ T
BE HETRRIEATERSYERALAK
g WE K > M Eagle Ride Investments
Fh— BB e 7] o 8 Se AR TR B BE T R
BHERARAFR ZEF > 5% vl & — Wk
B ML 2 ARA A > EEE R R
TH SN B AT 3E 2 B B IR OBS B D A Tl A B
FE b (LG T Bk ) 36 » B e A it
F—ZAEN A A A A 8 98 - 4R g BLNHH
B % K £ (Dubna International University
for Nature, Society and Man ) B f5 482 T
(R L = A

wBRE A o8 > A —F— =T —H—
HEEZREHARAFFEHATESE - G5
2 ATBUAEER - REAE 2 J B B R R
RREITER SRR ARG G-
HERER-NMALET_AE R =4
L F AT W A B b A D e g I E
AR (BB ARSE:517) ZHATEF K
HHEERASHE fEAEEE- - HE K
BoREEM R B AR S S
(TE S-S 1 A §tecy Nl IVAVAN ) |
N R e (AR ) MRS R - R AT B
U~ Y AR R AN AT U B LA
B J B~ R E AR

13



Biographical Details of Directors
%R E

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. GUI Shengyue, aged 52, was appointed an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on
1 November, 2013. He is currently the Chief Executive
Officer of Geely Automobile Holdings Limited (“Geely”),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code:
175, since February 2006, and is responsible for the
overall administration, risk management and compliance
of Geely. Mr. Gui joined Geely in June 2005.

Mr. WANG Xianzhang, aged 73, was appointed an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 1 November, 2013. He was the chairman of the
board and president of China Life Insurance Company
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange with
stock code: 2628 since its listing in 2003 to June 2005.
Mr. Wang also served as president of China Life Insurance
(Group) Company and chairman of China Life Asset
Management Company Limited. In addition, Mr. Wang
was also appointed as the directors of a number of
listed companies in Hong Kong, including the executive
director of Pacific Century Insurance Holdings Limited
previously listed on the Stock Exchange from June
1999 to November 2000, and re-designated to non-
executive director from November 2000 to March 2006
and independent non-executive director from March 2006
to June 2007. Mr. Wang was also the independent non-
executive director of Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code:
392, from April 1997 to March 2008.
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Mr. Vichai PHAISALAKANI, (alias Mr. Andy HUNG),
aged 67, was appointed an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 1 November, 2013. Mr.
Phaisalakani graduated from Minnesota State University
at Mankato, Minnesota, the United States of America
and is a Chartered Professional Accountant in Canada
as well as a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has worked for an international
accounting firm for 11 years and has extensive
experience in finance and corporate management with
major electronics and garments corporations. In June
2013, Mr. Phaisalakani retired from the positions of
executive director and chief financial officer of Willas-
Array Electronics (Holdings) Limited, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Singapore Exchange Limited
as well as the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. He also served as a senior consultant of
Walker Group Holdings Limited, a company listed on
the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange until
September 2015. Mr. Phaisalakani is an independent non-
executive director of Victory City International Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange.
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Report of the Directors
R

The Directors submit their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
During the Year, the Group is principally engaged in
the investments in the securities of listed and unlisted

companies.

The Company’s investment instruments will be made in
the form of equity securities or equity-related securities
or debt-related instruments in listed and unlisted
companies engaged in, including but not limited to other
industries, the oil sector. The investments will normally
be made in enterprises which are established in their
respective fields. The Company may also seek to identify
investments where there is a certain degree of synergy

with other investee entities.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year
under review and a discussion on the Group’s future
development are set out in the Chairman’s Statement
on pages 4 to 5 of this report and the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 6 to 11. These

discussions form part of this director’s report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results of the Group for the Year are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income on page 42.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the Year.

FURNITURE, FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in the furniture, fixtures and
equipment of the Group during the Year are set out in

note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND SHARE
CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the
Company during the Year are set out in note 25 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and note 35(b) to the

consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

A substantial portion of the Group’s income is derived
from the Group’s investments and bank deposits and thus
the disclosure of information regarding customers would
not be meaningful. The Group has no major suppliers

which require disclosure.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

During the Year, the Company did not purchase, sell or
redeem any of the Company’s own securities.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to

the date of this report are:

Executive Director:
Mr. CHAN Yiu Pun, Clement

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. HU Haisong
Mr. TUNG Shu Sun, Chairman
Ms. LI Yunshan
(resigned on 16 November 2015)
Dr. Fred AMINZADEH
(resigned on 16 November 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. GUI Shengyue

Mr. WANG Xianzhang

Mr. Vichai PHAISALAKANI

Pursuant to Article 88(1) of the Articles of Association
of the Company, Mr. Hu Haisong and Mr. Tung Shu Sun
shall retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company, and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election of Directors of

the Company.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual written confirmations
from each of its independent non-executive Directors in
respect of their independence during the year and all of
them are still being considered to be independent.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS

As at 31 December 2015, the following persons (other
than the Directors of the Company) had interest or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”):

B ERATER B

A% W) B MR A5 57 IR BUAT B o H R AR
W 8 SE R AR 2 AR R TR R 3 RR
SRS I AT E I L

FEB RSN 2 R IR

R_FE-HE+_A=+—H - BUTFTAL
(AN AIEHBRON) BEA A FIARIERE 75 )
W] (T 2% B 01 88 Wk 9] ) ) 2633010 A1
AT B2 8 RC A R Bk 2 AR 2 A B KA
R B3 v 2 A SR A

Approximate
percentage of
the total

Number of issued share
issued shares  capital of the
Name Capacity Nature of interests held Company
LY. Y/ P
P CBRITRAMEE
e 5 HE i PR E RGBME  ZHEAELK
Eagle Ride Investments Limited* Beneficial owner Corporate 966,038,573 04.44
Ha A A 2\ H]
& Eagle Ride Investments Limited, a company incorporated in the & Eagle Ride Investments Limited 24— [ 9% J& J&

British Virgin Islands with limited liability, wholly-owned by APAC
Investment Holdings Limited (“APAC”), a company incorporated
in Samoa and beneficially owned as to approximately 94.19% by
Mr. Hu Haisong (“Mr. Hu"), the Non-executive Director of the
Company, and approximately 5.81% by the Investors (“Investors”)
(whose interests are held on trust by Mr. Hu). The investors,
namely (i) Mr. Wang Haibin, a resident of the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) and engages in investment business in the PRC;
and (i) RB International Investments Asia Limited is principally

engaged in financial services.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been
notified by any other person (other than the Directors of
the Company) who had an interest or a short position
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO as at
31 December 2015.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s
business to which the Company or its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted

at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the employer within 1 year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS

As at 31 December 2015, the Directors of the Company
and their associates had the following interests and short
positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (“Model
Code’).
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Long positions WA

Number of % of issued
Name Capacity and nature Note shares Total share capital

C#fr

% S Rk E Wit i 4y % H GLil JeA T 4 b
Mr. HU Haisong Interest of corporation (D 966,638,573 966,638,573 04.44
g % 4
Note: ik

1) 966,638,573 shares are held through Eagle Ride Investments
Limited (“Eagle Ride Investments”). Eagle Ride Investments is
an investment holding company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
APAC Investment Holdings Limited, which is beneficially owned
as to approximately 94.19% interests by Mr. Hu Haisong and

approximately 5.81% by other investors.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company or
their associates had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURE

At no time during the Year was the Company or its
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate. Save as disclosed
under the heading “Share Option Scheme” below, the
Company did not grant any right to subscribe for the
shares in the Company to any Directors of the Company
or their respective spouse or children under the age of 18

during the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to a resolution passed by members of the
Company on 7 February 2005, the Company adopted a
share option scheme (the “2005 Scheme”) and under
the 2005 Scheme, the Board of the Company may
grant share options to eligible participants, including
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries and any
other persons including consultants, advisors, agents,
customers, suppliers, etc. to subscribe for shares in the
Company. During the Year, no options granted, exercised
or cancelled under the 2005 Scheme. The 2005 Scheme
expired on 7 February 2015 and the Company does not
have any outstanding options granted under the 2005

Scheme.
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A new share option scheme was adopted by members
of the Company on 22 May 2015 (the “2015 Share
Option Scheme”). The purpose of the 2015 Share
Option Scheme is to reward and provide incentives to
eligible participants and encourage them to contribute
to the Group. Under the 2015 Scheme, the Board of the
Company may at their discretion, at any time following
the date of the adoption of the 2015 Share Option
Scheme but before the tenth anniversary of that date,
grant share options to eligible participants, including
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries and any
other persons including consultants, advisors, agents,
customers, suppliers, etc. to subscribe for shares in the

Company.

The exercise price of share options is the highest of the
nominal value of the shares, the closing price of the
shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of the
grant and the average closing price of the shares on the
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the grant. An offer of an
option shall be deemed to have been accepted within 30
days from the date of offer upon acceptance of the option
duly signed by the grantee together with a remittance
of HK$1. The maximum number of securities available
for issue under the 2015 Share Option Scheme shall not
exceed 10% of the issued capital of the Company. The
maximum entitlement of each grantee in any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the ordinary shares in issue of
the Company. The option period will not be more than
ten years from the date of grant of the option and the
Board of the Company may at its discretion determine the
minimum period for which the option has to be held or
other restriction before the exercise of the subscription

right attaching thereon.
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As at the date of the adoption of the 2015 Share Option
Scheme, the maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the 2015 Share Option Scheme or any other share option
schemes adopted by the Company is 150,005,878 shares.
Further details of the 2015 Share Option Scheme are set
out in the circular of the Company dated 21 April 2015.

During the Year, no options granted, exercised or

cancelled under the 2015 Share Option Scheme.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
Details of pledge of assets are set out in note 29 to the

consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME
Details of the retirement benefits scheme are set out in

note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following are connected transactions occurred during

the Year.

1. Investment Management Agreement
Pursuant to the investment management agreement
dated 27 March 2014 made between Corban Asset
Management Limited (“CAML”) and the Company, the
Company will pay CAML an investment management
fee for the period from 13 May 2014 to 31 December
2016 payable monthly in HK Dollars in arrears at 2%
per annum of the net asset value of the Company
as at the last dealing day on the Stock Exchange in
each calendar month or such other day as may from
time to time be notified to CAML by the Board of
Directors, and on the basis of the actual number of

days elapsed in the relevant month.

CAML has changed its company name to Blue Star

Asset Management Limited on 20 November 2015.
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2. Confirmation from Auditor and Independent
Non-Executive Directors
The Company’s auditor and independent non-
executive Directors have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions of the Company and its

subsidiaries for the Year, and confirm that:

(a) the transactions entered into by the Group for
the Year were duly approved by the Board of the

Company; and

(b) the aggregated amount of the continuing
connected transactions for the Year does not
exceed the annual cap disclosed in the circular
of the Company dated 17 April 2014.

The independent non-executive Directors further

confirm that:

(¢) the transactions were entered into by the Group

in the ordinary and usual course of its business;

(d) the transactions were entered into by the Group

on normal commercial terms; and

(e) the transactions were entered into by the Group
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the

interests of the members of the Group.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is public available and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company
maintained the percentage prescribed for public float
requirement under the Listing Rules at the date of this

report.

Annual Report 2015 4§

2. BB BB IEPUTEE Z RE

AN T AL RS FBATE R
B A A 2% ) S HL B 2 R AR AR o
17 2 FR R B 22 5y > A e AR

(@) AEBERAFEEARFTLZZSE
WAL A E g B &

(b) AAAERER > 7 A B AL 5 MU
AN F HI G —F— T
WO H & H 2% e B8R 2 AR R
ERR-

W AT E S — R
(©) XXBTIRAREEH & KIEHER
AR ET 5L

(d) 225 T A 5 18] e B — i e eIk
AN

(e) Koy )51 8 i~ -F & BT & A%
I e SR 2 2 AR KT 57

AR S

ARAB 2% B AT A5 KL I 5 2 T > TR AR i
H s A w B AR BT RLRIE R BLE
ZIERNBIBBEA WL

23



Report of the Directors
R

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee, currently comprising one non-
executive Director and two independent non-executive
Directors, has reviewed the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and has discussed the
internal controls and financial reporting matters of the
Company with the management of the Company. The
audit committee has also reviewed the annual results of

the Group for the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association, or the laws of Cayman
Islands, although there are no restrictions against such

rights under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding
of the Shares.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company maintained Directors’ liability insurance
to protect them from any loss to which the Directors of
the Company might be liable arising from their actual or

alleged misconduct.

AUDITOR

On 23 January 2013, HLM & Co. resigned as the auditor
of the Company due to change of entity status from
partnership to limited company. At the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 19 February
2013, HLM CPA Limited has been appointed as auditor of
the Company.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2015, 2014 and 2013 were
audited by HLM CPA Limited who will retire and eligible

for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY BB

The Group supports environmental protection, A MEHRALNF LHRERME > HAT LA
implements green office practices and promotes green 250 B N HE R BR AR R o A B e A
awareness within the company. Such measures include  fI iR B B3R ARAK - W00 4K - B P &
the using of energy-saving lightings and recycled HECBA ~ 7B S % A 45 i A FERE

paper, minimising the use of paper, reducing energy

consumption by switching off idle lightings, computers

and electrical appliances.

On behalf of the Board REEFG
TUNG Shu Sun T
Chairman o B
Hong Kong, 31 March 2016 F —_EF—-ANF=H=+T—H
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The Company is committed to maintain statutory and
regulatory standards and adherence to the principles of
corporate governance with emphasis on transparency,
independence, accountability and responsibility. The
Company reviews its corporate governance practices
from time to time in order to meet the expectations of
shareholders and to fulfill its commitment to excellence

in corporate governance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based
on the principles, code provisions and recommended
best practices as set out in the Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). During the Year
ended 31 December 2015, the Company has complied
with all code provisions, and where applicable, certain
recommended best practices set out in the CG Code
except for code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code as

explained below.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
The Company had adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”), as contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules, as the required standard for the Directors of the
Company to deal in the securities of the Company. Upon
enquiry by the Company, all Directors of the Company
have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2015.
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The Board

Composition and Appointment

As at 31 December 2015, the Board of the Company
comprises six Directors, consisting of Mr. Chan Yiu Pun,
Clement as executive Director; Mr. Hu Haisong and Mr.
Tung Shu Sun (Chairman) as non-executive Directors; and
Mr. Gui Shengyue, Mr. Wang Xianzhang and Mr. Vichai
Phaisalakani as independent non-executive Directors.
Pursuant to the Listing Rules, each independent non-
executive Director had given an annual confirmation of

his independence to the Company.

Biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this
report are set out in the section headed ‘Biographical
Details of Directors’ of this annual report. Given the
composition of the Board and the skills, knowledge and
expertise of the Directors, the Board believes that it is
appropriately structured to provide sufficient checks
and balances to protect the interest of the Group and
the shareholders. The Board will review its composition
regularly to ensure that it has the appropriate balance of
expertise, skills and experience to continue to effectively

oversee the business of the Company.

The Board is responsible for the management of and
formulation in the Group’s overall investment strategies
and guidelines in accordance with the investment
objective and policies of the Group. The Board is also
responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code
which included developing and reviewing the Company’s
policies and practices and corporate governance,
reviewing the training and continuous professional
development of Directors, reviewing the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, developing, reviewing the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors, and reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the code provision in the CG Code and

disclosure in this report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board has
established Board committees, namely, audit committee,
remuneration committee, nomination committee and
investment committee, and has delegated to these Board
committees various responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference. The Board is accountable
to the members of the Company for the performance and

activities of the Group.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors, were appointed
for a specific term of one year or three years and
subject to re-election. One-third of the Directors of the
Company (both executive and non-executive) are subject
to retirement by rotation at an annual general meeting
at least once every three years in accordance with the

Articles of Association of the Company.

The Company has complied with Rule 3.10(1), Rule
3.10(2), and Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The
Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, one of whom possess the requisite appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The Board confirmed
that the independence and eligibility of the independent
non-executive Directors are in compliance with the

relevant requirements of the Listing Rules.

Under the code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code,
independent non-executive Directors and other non-
executive Directors should attend general meetings
and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
members. All Directors are encouraged to attend the
Company’s general meetings and each Director makes
every effort to attend. However, two independent non-
executive Directors and three non-executive Directors
were unable to attend the annual general meeting held

on 22 May 2015 due to other personal engagements.
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The Board has effectively overseen and monitored the
business activities, operational and financial performance
of the Group, ensured a proper internal control system
is in place to enable risks to be assessed and managed
and the decisions were made in the best interests of
the Company. The Board holds meetings from time to
time whenever necessary and the Board considered
that sufficient notice of Board meetings is given to
Directors. The Company Secretary records and maintains
the minutes of the Board meetings for inspection by

Directors.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2015,
the Board convened a total of 20 meetings and had
11 resolutions in writing in lieu of board meeting,
performing its duties in considering, inter alia, interim
and final results, change of directors, company secretary,
authorised representatives and compositions of board
committees, share subdivision, change of board lot
size of the Company and other matters pursuant to the
provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company.
Real-time teleconference system was adopted at meeting

to increase the attendance rate.

Directors’ attendance at the meetings during the financial

year ended 31 December 2015 are as follows:
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Annual
Board General
Meetings Meetings
HEHEGER RAEERE
Name of Director Title Attended/Held
EHEH Bt ElE BITRE
CHAN Yiu Pun, Clement Executive Director 20/20 1/1
bR A HiT#EF
HU Haisong Non-executive Director 20/20 0/1
kTN FHMTESR
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Annual
Board General
Meetings Meetings
EHEER RABERE
Name of Director Title Attended/Held
HERA L3 Sl BT RS
TUNG Shu Sun Chairman, Non-executive Director 20/20 1/1
£ E IR EUTES
LI Yunshan (note 1) Non-executive Director 3/14 0/1
ZE A (B aEL) E R
Fred AMINZADEH (note 2) Non-executive Director 2/14 0/1
Fred AMINZADEH (Fft5%2) FEHITES
GUI Shengyue Independent Non-executive Director 2/20 0/1
FEAE B BT E R
WANG Xianzhang Independent Non-executive Director 4/20 0/1
EHEE B R E S
Vichai PHAISALAKANI Independent Non-executive Director 4/20 1/1

FEAH

Notes:
1.  Resigned on 16 November 2015

2. Resigned on 16 November 2015
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Every Board member has full access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary with a view to
ensuring that Board procedures, and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed and they are also entitled to
have full access to Board papers and related materials so
that they are able to make an informed decision and to

discharge their duties and responsibilities.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Tung Shu Sun was the Chairman of the Company and
the Company has no Chief Executive Officer during the

Year.

DIRECTORS’ PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
Directors’ training is an ongoing process. All Directors
are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company’s expenses. They are requested to provide their

respective training records to the Company Secretary.

The Company has complied with the code provision A.6.5
of the CG Code on Directors’ training. A record of the
training received by the respective Directors are kept and

updated by the Company Secretary.

All Directors also understand the importance of
continuous professional development and are committed
to participate any suitable training to develop and refresh

their knowledge and skills.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The management provides such explanation and
information to the Board and reports regularly to
the Board on financial position and prospects of the
business of the Group so as to enable the Board to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other

information put before the Board for approval.
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The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Group. The Directors’ responsibilities in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements and the auditor’s
responsibilities are set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report. The responsibility of the external auditor is to
form an independent opinion, based on their audit, on
those consolidated financial statements prepared by the
Board and to report their opinion to the members of the
Company. A statement by auditor about their reporting
responsibility is set out in the Independent Auditor’s

Report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for the Group’s internal
control system and risk management procedures and
for reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control. The Board conducted a review of, and is satisfied
with the effectiveness of the system of internal controls of

the Group.

The Board is committed to the identification, monitoring
and management of risks associated with its business
activities. The Group’s internal control system is designed
to provide reasonable assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage and eliminate
risks of failure in operational systems and fulfillment
of business objective. The system includes a defined
management structure with segregation of duties and a
cash management system such as monthly reconciliation

of bank accounts.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s
material internal controls and was of the opinion that
the resources for and qualifications of staff of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting function were
adequate and sufficient. Based on information furnished
to it and on its own observations, the Board was satisfied

with the internal controls of the Group.
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The Company has set up its internal audit function. The
Audit Committee of the Company, with its amended
Terms of Reference took effect on 1 January 2016,
has been delegated the responsibility of reviewing
the overall effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control system of the Group. An internal audit
plan will be prepared, discussed and agreed with the
Audit Committee. Major internal audit findings will be
submitted to the Audit Committee for review and all
recommendations from the Audit Committee will be

properly followed up.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee comprises three members and
is currently consisting of two independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Wang Xianzhang and Mr. Vichai
Phaisalakani, and one non-executive Director, namely,
Mr. Hu Haisong. Mr. Wang Xianzhang is the chairman of

the nomination committee.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2015, there
was one nomination committee meeting. The attendance

of each of the members at such meeting are as follows:—

A A B B L R B - A A
FEERG ( @TZ%%%EM:
— N H*Ei@&# BB E AR E
JEL By B R A B R SRR R o N

ST #3150 4w i 05 B S8 A% &= B S AT el e

Je K8 TR 7= oﬁﬁﬁqjﬁ%E @%ﬁﬁﬁ%
LTHEEZBEGHERN WHZ il

ZEEWNTAE#E-

RUEZEG

{4 % B & =4 BB AR B RIS W
S IF AT E B (R E & w e KRR AR
WSE ) Ko — 24 JE BUAT H S (R WI 9 FA 5
)  EERELRAERRAZTHEEER -

WEE - Z—HAF+_H=+—H L
R RAFI BT RIBEZ TG E® -
BEMERZEeRZEBEERWT  —

Name of Member Title Attended/Held
B2 Wk £ W BATRE
HU Haisong Non-executive Director 1/1
LRGN FHITEH

WANG Xianzhang Independent Non-executive Director 1/1
TEE B PATES

Vichai PHAISALAKANI Independent Non-executive Director 1/1
AE HA B R PATES
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The Board adopted the terms of reference of the
nomination committee which is available on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. The nomination committee is mainly
responsible for the following functions: reviewing the
structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board and making
recommendations to the Board on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy, identifying individuals suitably
qualified to become Board members and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.
The nomination committee also considered the past
performance, qualification, general market conditions and
the Articles of Association of the Company in selecting
and recommending candidates for the directorship.
During the financial year ended 31 December 2015, the
nomination committee has discussed and reviewed the
Board composition and appointment, retirement and re-

election of Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has a remuneration committee for
determining the remuneration of Directors. The
remuneration committee has adopted the model that
it will determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration package of individual executive Directors
and senior management. The remuneration committee
comprises three members and is currently consisting
of two independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Wang Xianzhang and Mr. Vichai Phaisalakani, and
one non-executive Director, namely, Mr. Hu Haisong.
Mr. Wang Xianzhang is the chairman of the remuneration

committee.
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During the financial year ended 31 December 2015,
there were one remuneration committee meeting and
2 resolution in writing in lieu of committee meeting to
discuss remuneration related matters. The attendance of

each of the members at such meeting are as follows:—

WERE-F—HAF T+ _H=+—H LM
RN AR F BT WO B R
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Name of Member Title Attended/Held
B2 Wk £ BT RE
HU Haisong Non-executive Director 1/1
LRGN FHITEH

WANG Xianzhang Independent Non-executive Director 1/1
TEE B PATES

Vichai PHAISALAKANI Independent Non-executive Director 1/1
AE HA WL IEATE S

The terms of reference of the remuneration committee
are of no less exacting terms than those stipulated in the
CG Code. The terms of reference of the remuneration
committee is available on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company. The remuneration
committee is mainly responsible for the following
functions: determining the Company’s framework or
board policy for remuneration of Directors and senior
management, determining the policy and scope of
pension and compensation arrangements for executive
Directors and senior management, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their
office or appointment and reviewing and approving the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to

the Board’s corporate goals objectives.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2015,
the remuneration committee has reviewed (i) the
remuneration packages of the Directors and employees of
the Group with reference to the factors including but not
limited to salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of them and considered

that are fair and reasonable.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has set up an audit committee to review
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and the audit committee has discussed the internal
controls and financial reporting matters of the Group with
the management of the Company. The audit committee
has also reviewed interim results and the annual results
of the Group for the current year. The audit committee
comprises three members and is currently consisting
of two independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Vichai Phaisalakani and Mr. Wang Xianzhang, and
one non-executive Director, namely, Mr. Hu Haisong.
Mr. Vichai Phaisalakani is the chairman of the audit

committee.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2015, three
audit committee meetings were held. The attendance of
each of the members at such meetings are as follows:—
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Name of Member Title Attended/Held
B B 4 T3k 165 LN TFRle
HU Haisong Non-executive Director 3/3
LRGN FHATHES

Vichai PHAISALAKANI Independent Non-executive Director 3/3
RE LM WL EATE S

WANG Xianzhang Independent Non-executive Director 3/3
TEE WL EATE S

The terms of reference of the audit committee are of no
less exacting terms than those stipulated in the CG Code.
The terms of reference of the audit committee is available
on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company. The audit committee is mainly responsible
for the following functions: monitoring integrity of
the Company’s financial statements, including annual
report and accounts, interim and other periodic reports,
preliminary result announcements and reviewing
significant financial reporting judgments contained in
them and reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal controls and risk management systems.
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The audit committee has reviewed the auditing
performance, the internal controls, the unaudited
consolidated interim financial statements of the Group
for the six months ended 30 June 2015 and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the

financial year ended 31 December 2015.

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The investment committee is responsible for formulating
investment policies and reviewing and determining the
investment portfolio of the Group. As at 31 December
2015, the investment committee comprises four members,
consisting of one executive Director, Mr. Chan Yiu
Pun, Clement, one non-executive Director, Mr. Hu
Haisong, one independent non-executive Director,
Mr. Wang Xianzhang and an independent consultant,
Dr. Iraj Ershaghi. Mr. Chan Yiu Pun, Clement is the

chairman of the investment committee.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2015,
there were six investment committee meetings and two
resolutions in writing in lieu of committee meeting. The

attendance of each of the members at such meetings are

FEUEBGOHFMZEEI - AT ERE-
AREFHE " F—HFESNH=Z"1THIEAHE
H2Z RBEZE G P B R AL E
BEZT—-HE+T H=+—HIEMHBF
EZREZLG BB IRE-

REZEH

& & B8 ARG E KRG BOR X3 B X
EALEZBHEAG - R _F—HE+Z
H=+—H > #%&Z 8 &4 W8
B AT EFREM L — 2R
TEEHENEE — 2B TES
FEEA K — AL B M 1raj Ershaghil®
LB A ARELZ RGN -

BEEF-RHE+T H=+—HILHE4E
BN ARNAERBITARKRES B &85
FmxEmLETAREZE G-
FEWREHFEZESRZBERNOT  —

as follows:—

Name of Member Title Attended/Held
BB o4 Tk 187 O BRAIT R
CHAN Yiu Pun, Clement Executive Director 6/6
IR A AT E F

HU Haisong Non-executive Director 6/6
LR AT &

LI Yunshan (Note 3) Non-executive Director 3/4
A (B 3E3) FATE F

WANG Xianzhang Independent Non-executive Director 4/6
TEHEE B PATES

Iraj ERSHAGHI Independent Consultant 4/6

18 7. JBE 1
Notes:

3. ceased on 16 November 2015
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Au Shiu Kee, the Company Secretary of the
Company, has confirmed that he has fulfilled the training
requirements under the Listing Rules for the financial year
ended 31 December 2015.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
For the financial year ended 31 December 2015, the
remuneration payable to the Company’s external auditor
in respect of audit services and non-audit services were
approximately HK$300,000 (2014: HK$250,000) and
HK$30,000 (2014: HK$nil) respectively.

MEMBERS’ RIGHTS

Way to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting
Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association of
the Company, any one or more members holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the

transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

Members’ Enquiries

Members should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s share registrar in
Hong Kong. Members may at any time make a request
for the Company’s information to the extent that such
information is publically available. Members may also

make enquiries to the following contact details of the

Company:

Address: Room 2206, China Resources Building,
26 Harbour Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

Tel: +852 3901 0901

Email: info@empirialgroup.com

2w Bl E

5 4R 4L S0 A 2 AR N | 2 N A AL o B
RABRE - F—NFET_H=Z1T—H LW
BUAE B O R SF L RNIE T 2 B o

¥ SR P
BEZT-HE+_A=+—HILMHHK
AEBE 5 A ) R A IR I T B A IR S
f5F A w2 A0 W A% SR 22 35 40 Bl 4 2
300,000%5 G ( —ZF — U 4 : 250,000% 7T )
K30,000% 76 ( =& — VU4 B TC) ©

i SR A

A BB Ok & 2 5 K

MRYEAS 2> 7] 22 ALk A 40 J) 6 se e > i B
A2 55 HO R A B A A AT AR 2 R BOR
R EBFEZA R AR AR DR A7
2 AR — A B Lk b B s AT AT B
PR 1 S AR A A AL P A
T 2 5 2 07 3 FORH S R B 2
v 5 W] 22 AT A7 2 5 45 B IS SRR R &

i 5 2

B TR 1) AR 2 ] e 208 5O T BE 4R AT B
LS HE 22 B ) o FBC SR T B R SR R A B
AR AVER (DLABIERER) o BRI A]
F AN TN B AR R A

Motk o A U A R E 26 9% 18 T K

2206%F
FEEE T +852 3901 0901
HEHE :  info@empirialgroup.com
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Procedures and Sufficient Contact Details for
Putting Forward Proposals at Members’ Meetings
Members are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to
the operations, strategy and/or management of the Group
to be discussed at members’ meeting. Proposal shall be
sent to the Board or the Company Secretary by written
requisition. Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the
Company, members who wish to put forward a proposal
should convene an extraordinary general meeting by the
procedures set out in “Way to Convene an Extraordinary

General Meeting” above.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Communication with Investors

The Board maintains an on-going dialogue with the
Company’s members through various channels including
the Company’s financial reports (interim and annual
reports), annual general meeting and other general
meetings. Members are encouraged to participate in
general meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote
at the general meetings for and on their behalf if they are
unable to attend the general meetings. The results of the
voting by poll are published on the respective websites of

the Stock Exchange and the Company on a timely basis.

For both investors and other stakeholders, the Company’s
website www.eaglerideinvestment.com provides latest
information on the Group. All key information about
the Group such as the Company’s financial reports,
announcements, circular and other corporate information

can be downloaded from this website.
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161 & 1 65 47 H TR 4 3]
HLM CPA LIMITED

Certified Public Accountants

Room 305, Arion Commercial Centre

2-12 Queen’s Road West, Hong Kong.

Fr s 25 K8 P 2- 1250 B 4 2 0305 F
Tel & #fi: (852) 3103 6980

Fax f#H: (852) 3104 0170

E-mail & #: info@hlm.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF
EAGLE RIDE INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Eagle Ride Investment Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“‘Group”) set out on pages 42 to 147, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
of the Company determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

We conducted our audit in

consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

BUE 8 & B A R A
(B P8 75 2 Ml o & IR 2N Al )
7 e

AGHACFEZ IR E 221478 B HRE
FERA R A (T8 AR K H Mg A A
(#FE [ BEEME]) 245 MBRE Kb a
BRh_F—HE+_A=+—H2Z&&H
Bk E UEBEZA ILEEZES5E
it S LAt 2 TG WA A R~ SR AR £ A B IR R
&%Aﬁimiﬁ DL % B e 5t BOK %
T L At i F8 R o

HEHENGGTMBEREARBZELE

BRI ERHAARERE G A &M
s 2 7 i S 5 i o A R B At 9 O ) AR 1) 22
e r L2 i T B BN P B S 2 AR
PABS kR WP A el o 2 2 N B
E DA T i 9 2 %5 T 75 S 3R S A AE
A YR B R T A B K B R PR AL

B B 2 F AT
AL BT 2 A RARIEE FZFLER
%?#%A%ﬁﬁ%%%iﬁnﬁfﬁﬂ
S 2 Wi R 2 W A6k 1 1) 2 B R SRR
ZHER BRIz $ﬁ%fﬁﬁ@ﬁ%o
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2015, and of its financial performance
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLM CPA LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

Ho Pak Tat

Practising certificate number: P05215

Hong Kong, 31 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Aok B 15 2 M HL At 4 1 Wi 2 2R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % —&F —HFE T+ - H =+ —HILFE

2015 2014
D S K3 —F— YA
Notes HK$ HK$
M it iU W& 7T
Revenue I # 8 - -
Net realised gain on disposal of HEREAIFIERE Z
financial assets designated W EEZ
as held for trading A% B i A 1 - 1,856,849
Net unrealised gain arising on AR E BIFEEE
revaluation of financial assets WMHEEEMEERZ
designated as held for trading I 5 B 4 15 AE 5,350,800 15,683,840
Net unrealised (loss) gain arising A & % 2% #% /8 A8 (H
on revaluation of financial wh AR fi 2 BB A
assets designated as at fair JT A 2 R B B
value through profit or loss (i 18) i i 5 21 (23,995,344) 5,762,710
Other income, gains and losses HAb A ~ i t5 K e 48 (8 (1,446,500) (1,418,862)
Administrative and A7 BN At 7 7 B 3¢
other operating expenses (38,561,036) (47,087,270)
Loss from operations g TR (10) (58,652,080) (25,202,733)
Finance costs % (1D (1,750,791) =
Loss before tax R 5 HiT R 12 (60,402,871) (25,202,733)
Income tax expense FIr 45 84 B 52 (12) - =
Loss for the year and AN E A NEAL N
total comprehensive expenses e 18 % 4 T BH S KRR
attributable to owners of
the Company (60,402,871) (25,202,733)
Loss per share (5354 F =
Basic and diluted B ¥NYSE 3 (10) (0.040) (0.017)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

i B R DL AR

At 31 December 2015 A ~F—HAF+ - HA=1+—H

2015 2014
- Sl i —E—UAE
Notes HK$ HK$
Bt it b Tn T
Non-current assets FERBE E
Furniture, fixtures and 1AL~ 3B K A
equipment (17) 3,801,953 5,119,493
Financial assets at fair value e nEEFI ARG Z
through profit or loss WA 5 (18) 25,055,044 50,648,586
28,856,997 55,768,079
Current assets i By B
Deposits and prepayments i <5 o FE A EROA (19) 2,357,636 2,315,969
Financial assets at fair value N RfEEFAEG 2
through profit or loss B B (18) 38,656,800 58,259,378
Cash and bank balances 4 B8R AT 45 (20) 145,520 87,041
41,159,956 60,662,388
Assets classified as held for YIBfFHEZ EE
sale 1) 24,930,413 -
66,090,369 60,662,388
Current liabilities b R =
Creditors and accrued JRE A 3R TE e TE R 2
expenses (22) 6,528,400 5,767,969
Deposit received in advance TH W & 1) 8,155,980 =
Loans from a director HH AR 23) 11,910,881 2,100,000
26,595,261 7,867,969
Net current assets i B & E T E 39,495,108 52,794,419
Total assets less current & R AR U B AR
liabilities 68,352,105 108,562,498
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A B A B IR D A

At 31 December 2015 A ~F— 4+ A =1—H

2015 2014
WIS S i S TR —4E
Notes HK$ HK$
Non-current liability Ik B £ fE
Corporate bonds NEILi-E=3 24) 20,192,478 =
NET ASSETS & A 48,159,627 108,562,498
Capital and reserves B A K il i
Share capital J A (25) 18,750,735 18,750,735
Reserves it fhi 29,408,892 89,811,763
TOTAL EQUITY HE 5 48 %A 48,159,627 108,562,498

The consolidated financial statements on pages 42 to 147

were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of

Directors on 31 March 2016 and are signed on its behalf

by:

Fa2R 147 A2 A MFEHmERC R

—NEZH =+ — HEEE e IR
Flgg, WA TEFAREE:

=

44

TUNG Shu Sun
B iR

Director

#HH

CHAN Yiu Pun, Clement
e e A
Director

#HH
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % —F —HF T+ A=+ —HIEF

Capital
Share Share  redemption Accumulated

capital premium reserves losses Total

it & R A LE 3 At

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

W T W Y T

At 1 January 2014 WoE—NE—HA—H 18,739,259 601,964,932 168800  (487,120,784) 133,752,207

Total comprehensive expenses WM T AR - - - (25,202,733)  (25,202,733)

Exercise of bonus warrants T8 LRI RR RS 11,476 33,281 = = 44,757

Shares issue expenses BITROEX = (31,733) = = (31,733)
At 31 December 2014 and WEZ—WEFZA=Z+—H R

1 January 2015 “E-H4—f—H 18750735 601,966,480 168800  (512323517) 108,562,498

Total comprehensive expenses AT A = - - (60,402,871)  (60,402,871)

At 31 December 2015 REB-LEFZA=Z+—R 18,750,735 601,966,480 168,800 (572,726,388) 48,159,627
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEBESmRER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % — % —f4E+ A =1+—HILFE

2015 2014
—F—hi —E Y
Notes HK$ HK$
it # T it
Operating activities KB
Loss before tax B % Hil e 18 (60,402,871) (25,202,733)
Adjustments for: FULN £ TE R
Depreciation of furniture, AN - WG iR
fixtures and equipment (17) 1,317,540 1,310,131
Net realised gain on disposal of HEREAFEREZ
financial assets designated as MHEE O 8
held for trading i 4 13 4R - (1,850,849)
Net unrealised gain arising FEREAREEE M
on revaluation of financial BERETESE KRB
assets designated as held for i 4 V3 4R
trading (5,350,800) (15,683,840)
Net unrealised loss (gain) AL S € A A A EEE
arising on revaluation of AR 5 2 B E T
financial assets designated as R B kR ()
at fair value through profit tEE
or loss 23,995,344 (5,762,710)
Net gain on disposal of HEGR KE B
furniture, fixtures and W £ 5 AR
equipment - (22,194)
Net exchange loss of T8 € £y ¥k B E E
financial assets designated AR 42 W B &
as at fair value through 1 65 18
profit or loss 1,621,163 1,439,903
Interest expenses BB % (1D 1,750,791 -
Interest income FE WA (8) - (24)
Operating cash outflows before BB T
movements in working capital - RN (37,068,833) (45,778,316)
(Increase) decrease in deposits ¥ 4 J T8 A% 200H
and prepayments (38m) Wb (41,667) 129,372
Increase in creditors and B A5F 3k TE I T 2 2 6
accrued expenses 760,431 3,377,463
Decrease in amounts due to the BB A B A 2 JRC A W
ultimate holding company AE D - (30,000)
Net cash used in operating A8 81 B) B B B i
activities (36,350,069) (42,301,481)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mEBEmER
For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % —F —HF T+ A=+ —HIEF
2015 2014
— 4 —F—N4E
Notes HKS$ HK$
Investing activities REWHH
Interest received 2 A B €] - 24
Purchase of financial assets HREAREREZ
designated as held for trading W5 - (22,850,712)
Proceeds from disposal of HEHREAFEREZ
financial asset designated as WA 5 7 T 15 30OH
held for trading - 7,085,401
Purchase of financial assets fi 5 46 E £ 1R N B FEA
designated as at fair value Bz B &R
through profit or loss - (71,279,157)
Deposit received for disposal of a W i & — [ [t & 28 7] 2
subsidiary 4 21) 8,155,980 =
Purchase of furniture, fixtures R HE K
and equipment A i K E (17) - (1,456,325)
Proceeds from disposal of HEGN - KE
furniture, fixtures and A T 15 ?ﬁ
equipment - 480,000
Net cash generated from REFHELA (EBH)
(used in) investing activities REHH 8,155,980 (88,020,769)
Financing activities il & 5 B
Proceeds from loans from T SO 5 0R
a director 11,050,000 2,100,000
Repayment of loans from R 3 2 H
a director (1,556,816) =
Net proceeds from issue of BIT N AMERZ
corporate bonds B A5 2 JE 5 24) 18,835,000 =
Corporate bonds interest paid N FE S 2 R B AT (24) (75,616) -
Net proceeds from issue of shares  #47 {2 Fir 1% 30 IH % 8 - 13,024
Net cash generated from 0 B P e 2k B
financing activities 28,252,568 2,113,024
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

22 /N 2y B
mEBlamER
For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % — % —f4E+ A =1+—HILFE
2015 2014
DS S ¥ 3 TR U4
Notes HK$ HK$
M 7F T T
Net increase (decrease) in cash Bl & R & % EY 3 m
and cash equivalents (WA ) FH 58,479 (128,209,2206)
Cash and cash equivalents at ENZBERBEEEHD
the beginning of year 87,041 128,296,267
Cash and cash equivalents at ERZBELBEEEHD
the end of year (20) 145,520 87,041
Cash and cash equivalents BB &S HDE:
represent:
Cash and bank balances B4 R AT 45 Bk (20) 145,520 87,041
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fok B P 5 2% B i

For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % —F —HF T+ A=+ —HIEF

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability and its shares are
listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and
its ultimate holding company is APAC Investment
Holdings Limited (“APAC”) (incorporated in Samoa).
Its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Hu Haisong
(“Mr. Hu”), who is a non-executive director of the
Company. The registered office of the Company is at
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and its principal
place of business in Hong Kong is Room 2206, China

Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wan Chai,

Hong Kong.

The Group is principally engaged in investment

holdings and trading of financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss (“FVTPL").

The consolidated financial statements are presented

in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as

the functional currency of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Aok B B 5 A% B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #% %

2.

50

—HEFZH=F IR

BASIS OF PREPARATION

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,

the directors of the Company have given careful

consideration to the future liquidity of the Group

notwithstanding that:

the Group incurred a net loss of approximately
HK$60,403,000 with no revenue generated
for the year ended 31 December 2015, and
net cash outflows from operating activities of
approximately HK$36,350,000 for the year ended
31 December 2015; and

the Group had a weak cash and bank balances
position of approximately HK$146,000 as at 31
December 2015, and loans from a director of
approximately HK$11,911,000 which are due for
repayment within one year from 31 December
2015.

Despite the above, the directors of the Company are

of the opinion that the Group will have sufficient

financial resources to meet its financial obligations as

they fall due for at least the next twelve months from

the end of the reporting period, after taking into

consideration of the followings:

1

(ii)

at the end of the reporting period, amongst the
financial assets designated as held for trading
was a listed equity investment at a fair value of
approximately HK$38,657,000 which could be
realised on the Stock Exchange at short notice to

provide liquid funds for the Group;

the Company had received HK$19,000,000
(equivalent to US$2,450,000) in cash in March
2016 from the purchaser to settle the remaining
consideration of the disposal of a subsidiary,
details are set out in note 21 of the consolidated

financial statements;

B L HE e

TEfm W a2 % 5 B M B R IR > AL 7]
1Y) 8 o A 4 B Y R R T B 4G T
TR A

- AHEHEBE _FT—-HE+ A
:+#H¢$Eﬂﬁ,ﬂﬂﬁkéiﬁ
B 15 15 18 £960,403,000% 7€ - H
2EF—REFTZA=1+—HIE
FEEZBEEE S FER B
36,350,000%5 JC 5

- AREBFAR _F—HE+ A
=+ —HZ B & K RAT & R K e
fifi A A £9146,000% 7 » X # H 2
B A11,911,000% 0 H —~F—
F+A=1+—HRRER—FN
B3R

ERA LAEI AN A EER R E
DR R EBRR T A A
A [ AT A B B B IR DL R
MABUH % WA B RE LT

() RIEMA e LR EEREZ M
BEEPOAEEA R EATED
38,657,000 62 bl A E
ﬁA?*tH%EE%F'iL%D%EWTEﬁx

Frsg Bl ML EIRMLRBI G 4

RAFRR - FE—NF=HRKE W
W BB 4219,000,000% 7T (FH % 72
2,450,000 70 ) DA &5 15 B — [ B
J& o 7 0 R AR > REAE R R A
WS R 21 5

(iD)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fok B P 5 2% B i

For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % —F —HF T+ A=+ —HIEF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2. FRRLUE (4%)

(iii) subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
the Company had obtained a loan from an
independent money lending company at a
principal amount of HK$10,000,000, which is
repayable within one year with neither securities
pledged nor guarantee and bearing fixed interest

rate at 10% per annum;

(iv) Mr. Hu agreed to provide continuous financial
support to the Group to meet its financial

obligations;

(v) the directors of the Company are taking measures
to tighten cost controls over administrative and
other operating expenses aiming at improving
the working capital and cash flows position of
the Group including closely monitoring the daily

operating expenses; and

(vi) the directors of the Company are exploring the

possibility to conduct fund raising activities.

The directors of the Company have carried out a
detailed review of the cash flow forecast of the
Group for the next twelve months from the reporting
date taking into account the impact of the above
measures, the directors believe that the Group will
have sufficient cash resources to satisfy its future
working capital and other financing requirements.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements

have been prepared on a going concern basis.
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3.

52

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

New and revised HKFRSs affecting amounts
reported and/or disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements

The Group has applied for the first time in the
current year the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”):

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

Amendments to Defined Benefit Plans:

HKAS 19 Employee Contributions

The application of the above amendments to HKFRSs
in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set

out in these consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)
New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following

new and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective in the consolidated financial

statements:

Amendments to
HKFRSs

HKFRS 9

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to
HKFRS 11

HKEFRS 15

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38

Amendments to
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle!

Financial Instruments?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture’

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation
Exception’

Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interests in Joint
Operations’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Disclosure Initiative?

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer Plants’

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2016, with earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2018, with earlier application permitted.

& The original effective date has been deferred to a date yet to

be determined.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in
2010 to include requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to
include the new requirements for general hedge
accounting. Another revised version of HKFRS 9
was issued in 2014 mainly to include a) impairment
requirements for financial assets and b) limited
amendments to the classification and measurement
requirements by introducing a ‘fair value through
(“FVTOCI”)
measurement category for certain simple debt

other comprehensive income’

instruments.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)
New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as

follows:

e All recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement are subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within
a business model whose objective is achieved
both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets, and that have contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All other
debt investments and equity investments are
measured at their fair values at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the
fair value of an equity investment (that is not
held for trading) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognised

in profit or loss.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at FVTPL, HKFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in the fair
value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless
the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value
of financial liabilities attributable to changes
in the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under
HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the
fair value of the financial liability designated as

at FVTPL was presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model,
as opposed to an incurred credit loss model
under HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model
requires an entity to account for expected credit
losses and changes in those expected credit
losses at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses are

recognised.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)
New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

* The new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting.
However, greater flexibility has been introduced
to the types of transactions eligible for hedge
accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify for hedging instruments
and the types of risk components of non-
financial items that are eligible for hedge
accounting. In addition, the effectiveness
test has been overhauled and replaced with
the principle of an ‘economic relationship’.
Retrospective assessment of hedge effectiveness
is also no longer required. Enhanced disclosure

requirements about an entity’s risk management

activities have also been introduced.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future may have certain
impact on the amounts reported in respect of the
Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities. Tt
is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate

of that effect until a detailed review has been

completed.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised standards

and amendments will have no material impact on the

consolidated financial statements.

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622)
In addition, as the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts
and Audit” of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) have come into operation
during the financial year, as a result, there are
changes to presentation and disclosures of certain

information in the consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (“CO").

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) regarding preparation of
accounts and director’s reports and audits became
effective for the Company for the financial year
ended 31 December 2015. Further, the disclosure
requirements set out in the Listing Rules regarding
annual accounts have been amended with reference
to the new CO and to streamline with HKFRSs.
Accordingly, the presentation and disclosure of
information in the consolidated financial statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2015
have been changed to comply with these new
requirements. Comparative information in respect
of the financial year ended 31 December 2014
are presented or disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements based on the new requirements.
Information previously required to be disclosed
under the predecessor CO or Listing Rules but not
under the new CO or amended Listing Rules are not

disclosed in these consolidated financial statements.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Statement of compliance (continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments that are measured at
fair values at the end of each reporting period, as

explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of

the consideration given in exchange for assets.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would takes those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purpose in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except
for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or
value in use in HKAS 36.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Statement of compliance (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

* Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities

that the entity can access at the measurement

date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are

observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly; and

* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the

asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities

controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved where the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from

its involvement with the investee; and

* has the ability to use its power to affect its

returns.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there

are changes to one or more of the three elements of

control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date of the Group

gains control until the date when the Group ceases to

control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling interests.
Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the

non-controlling interests even if this results in the

non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their

accounting policies in line with the Group’s

accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions

between members of the Group are eliminated in full

on consolidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries that do not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and

attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit
or loss or transferred to another category of equity
as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The
fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an associate

or a joint venture.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs,
if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
measured at fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and recognised in profit or loss as

follows:

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has
been established (provided that it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the

amount of revenue can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can
be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
inflows through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other

leases are classified as operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing (continued)

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease terms,
except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they

are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to
enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the

leased asset are consumed.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are interests and other costs (e.g.
transaction costs) that an entity incurs in connection

with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
asset until such time as the assets are substantially

ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the

borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or

loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which

they arise except for:

e exchange differences on foreign currency
borrowings relating to assets under construction
for future productive use, which are included in
the cost of those assets when they are regarded
as an adjustment to interest costs on those

foreign currency borrowings;

* exchange differences on transactions entered into
in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks;

and

* exchange differences on monetary items
receivable from or payable to a foreign operation
for which settlement is neither planned nor
likely to occur (therefore forming part of the
net investment in the foreign operation), which
are recognised initially in other comprehensive
income and reclassified from equity to profit or

loss on repayment of the monetary items.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e., Hong Kong dollars)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of foreign currency
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling

interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement
or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial
asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or

loss.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for
all the employees who are eligible to participate in
the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF

Scheme.

Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual
leave and sick leave in the period the related service
is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that

service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term
employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in

exchange for the related service.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax

currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before
tax’ as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because of items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such deferred assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises

from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
arrangements, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable

future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to

allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the
end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the

carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the

accounting for the business combination.

Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Furniture, fixtures and equipment are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and

subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of assets less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method,

at the following rates:

Leasehold improvements 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Office equipment 20%
Motor vehicle 20%

The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in

estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

4. EEFFBOR (4)

B (#4)
4 13y B ) B A i i TR
R0 2 A0 S A EUTA 8 2 1A AR - i B

399 e 30 A0 ot TR L HL A 4 TR WA 2 B
He A HE 2 R 2 JH H A B AR 23 5l
P H A S TR Wi i B 4 A i R
fied PRl S5 5 BF 1 0 25 &t i B i
P B B TR EE A B - A B BLES
BEI AT grtEHE -

R AR ~ 2% B R ik

AR ~ 5 E L )R 5 A TS AR L
i DA (E AR 2 AT 8 AR
Znt B EER (NA) FIHg -

B 2P T T B AR DL ARk
it st AT 8 4 S0 S R AR (8 H R
EREE R E

HEYWEEE 20%
EXYS & 5w 20%
YN ] 20%
KH 20%

fili T (5 Y 4F 39 ~ R 6 18 0 % 3 85 U7
5 R 2% i AR AT A B > T AT AT A
At 5 B 2 5 BT OR A B AR -

EAGLE RIDE INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED  Jif§ 3 &% A BR 2 ]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

N

Ao 1 U 5 e M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % —F —HF T+ A=+ —HIEF

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Furniture, fixtures and equipment (continued)

An item of furniture, fixtures and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
furniture, fixtures and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in

profit or loss.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation

basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment at least annually, and whenever there

is an indication that the asset may be impaired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not

been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
the cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the

obligation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Provisions (continued)

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (when the effect of the

time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required
to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an
asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will
be received and the amount of receivable can be

measured reliably.

Assets classified as held for sale

Assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying
amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This
condition is regarded as met only when the asset is
available for immediate sale in its present conditions.
Subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such asset and its sale is highly probable.
Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of

classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all of the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are classified
as held for sale when the criteria described above are

met.
Assets classified as held for sale are measured at

the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair

value less costs to sell.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party to

the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following
specified categories: financial assets at FVTPL, held-
to-maturity investments, available-for-sale (“AFS”)
financial assets and loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established

by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument,

or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net

carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis

for debt instruments other than those financial assets

classified as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVITPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVIPL when the

financial asset is held for trading or it is designated

as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

* it has been acquired principally for the purpose

of selling it in the near term; or

* on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group

manages together and has a recent actual pattern

of short-term profit-taking; or

* it is a derivative that is not designated and

effective as a hedging instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial

recognition if:

* such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition

inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

* the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the

grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or
more embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39
permits the entire combined contract (asset or
liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is included
in the “net realised gain (loss) on disposal of
financial assets designated as held for trading”. Fair
value is determined in the manner described in note
7.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity dates that the Group has the

positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.

Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity
investments are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any impairment (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment losses

on financial assets below).

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified
as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity

investments or (¢) financial assets at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that
are classified as AFS financial assets and are traded
in an active market are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amounts of AFS monetary financial assets relating
to interest income calculated using the effective
interest method and dividends on AFS equity
investments are recognised in profit or loss. Other
changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial
assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of
investments revaluation reserve. When the investment
is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss (see the accounting policy in respect of

impairment loss on financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

AFS financial assets (continued)

Dividends on AFS equity investments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the
dividends is established.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity investments are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the end of
each reporting period (see the accounting policy in

respect of impairment loss on financial assets below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
deposits, cash and bank balances, and others) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment (see accounting

policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables when the recognition of interest would

be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired when there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the investment have

been affected.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For AFS equity investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the securities
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence

of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of

impairment could include:

* significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

e breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

* it becoming probable that the borrower will

enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e the disappearance of an active market for that

financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such
as accounts receivable, assets are assessed for
impairment on a collective basis even if they were
assessed not to be impaired individually. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, as well as observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate

with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective

interest rate.

Annual Report 2015 4E#t

4. EREFBOR (4)

SRTH (4)

& E (H)
HBEEZWHE ()

WAL A BB T a% R A
TR B K W B AR A AR HE A AL 2
B2 Z B -

BT A HC A B VT 5 - B2
LA 0 T 0 ¢

o EEAT NERZZ 5 ¥ F A7 A B BB
K % 5 Y,

o ESCEH BN R B A ALE
A B B

o MBI AT RE WA ul AT A
4 ;5 8%,

o R BCIR M4 BV 20
B 530 5 -

Hh2 T B A (0 R T
B B BT R A s 0 0
I J80 e e L M A (A € o B U
SO 2 % LA (8 R0 T 045 7 4
P 2 0 A B B B 2K o
I B 2 2 0 A PR 2
AT -

AL LA B A B (B 2 B B O A T
B (L s 18 R 2 B Y 4% T AR T (E
S %2 B 5 T DU R R R B 2 Al
AFHEEERBREL R & -

79



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Tard
o

o S 25 A Fi

For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % — % —f4E+ A =1+—HILFE

4.

80

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be
reversed in subsequent periods (see the accounting

policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of accounts receivable, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When an accounts receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or

loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are

reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the investment
at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had

the impairment not been recognised.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not
reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair
value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of investments revaluation reserve.
In respect of AFS debt investments, impairment losses
are subsequently reversed through profit or loss if
an increase in the fair value of the investment can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the

recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in according with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial

liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the
purchase, sale or cancellation of the Company’s own

equity instruments.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when
the financial liability is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

—HEFZH=F IR

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (continued)
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A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose

of repurchasing it in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern

of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and

effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability
held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon

initial recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition

inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the

grouping is provided internally on that basis; or
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (continued)

* it forms part of a contract containing one
or more embedded derivatives, and HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement permits the entire combined
contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at
FVTPL.

Other tinancial liabilities
Other financial liabilities (including creditors,
borrowings and others) are subsequently measured at

amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net

carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis other than financial liabilities classified as at
FVTPL, of which the interest expense is included in

net gains or losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise
the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement
and recognises an associated liability. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the

proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income and

accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than
in its entirety, the Group allocates the previous
carrying amount of the financial asset between the
part it continues to recognise, and the part it no
longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated
to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no
longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss
allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.
A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income is allocated between
the part that continues to be recognised and the
part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the

relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable

is recognised in profit or loss.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
reporting decision-maker is the person or group that
responsible for allocating resources and accessing
performance of the operating segments and
geographical location. The Group has determined the
Company’s board of directors (“the Board”) as its

chief operating decision maker.
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4.

86

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Segment reporting (continued)

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type of class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be

aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash at banks and on hand and
demand deposits with any bank or other financial
institution. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been

within three months of maturing at acquisition.
Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to

the Group that is preparing its financial statement.

(i) A person or a close member of that person’s

family is related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control of the Group;

(2) has significant influence over the Group; or
(3) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or a parent of the

Group.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
Related parties (continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(D

@)

€)

(€Y)

C))

(6)

@)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which

the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same

third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third party
and the other entity is an associate of the
same third party.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group.
If the Group is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related to the

Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly-controlled
by a person identified in (i).

A person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity

(or of a parent of the entity).
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4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Related parties (continued)

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources,
services or obligations between a reporting entity
and a related party, regardless of whether a price is

charged.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity, and include:

(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(o) dependents of that person or that person’s

spouse or domestic partner.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 4, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and associated assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and

future periods.
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5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year.

Depreciation

The Group depreciates the furniture, fixtures and
equipment over their estimated useful live and after
taking into account of their estimated residual values,
using the straight line method. The estimated useful
live reflects the directors’ estimate of the periods that
the Group intends to derive future economic benefits
from the use of the Group’s furniture, fixtures and
equipment. The residual values reflect the directors’
estimated amount that the Group would currently
obtain from the disposal of the assets, after deducting
the estimated costs of disposal, if the assets were
already of the age and in the condition expected at

the end of their useful lives.

Fair value measurement and valuation processes
The listed and unlisted equity investments are
measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes. The Board has set up Investment
Committee, which the executive director is appointed
as the Chairman, and Blue Star Asset Management
Limited (Formerly named as “Corban Asset
Management Limited”) (“Blue Star”) is appointed
as investment manager to determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements. In estimating the fair value of an asset
or a liability, the Group uses market-observable data

to the extent it is available.

Annual Report 2015 4E#t

fili 5 A I R 2 2R
(#47)

DU B R 2 B RE » LAR
et R AR R R 2
AR > F AT fi B AT BT — A
JEU W % R (L1 K
TR LB -

o 8
AR F AR~ e R B 2 Al RO
FRAEHA A - i AR W 3~ S
G R R e S N
% M L o A w6 4 0 S i S AR
45 B wt B 8 AR R - B R
A R AR KL M) 2 2 A R I R o R B
(B BB BB L TR R
i%MmZ%ﬁﬁ3§$ﬂ$%@
mﬁ*ﬁ?T%Zﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ
m B A R B A

& A E 1 7 2 R A 9 2

BT R IR BT AR B A S fE
BEAMBREZH - EHGHIBRE
ZEE HYPfTEFEZERTR &
ZHEETEEEMARATR (R
HREEEHEARARLD ([EF]) 5
B A > A 57 5 7R B b (6 D7 I Kol
ABHRAE 5 A REER B2 - Rl
APEESA M A R BEEE A EH
{5 F AT 4t G5 9 ) T 9L T 45 1) B

89



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

m}f

o S 25 A Fi

For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % — % —f4E+ A =1+—HILFE

5.

90

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Fair value measurement and valuation processes
(continued)

Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
engaged an independent professional valuer to
perform the valuation. The Investment Committee
and the investment manager work closely with
the valuer to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model. The Investment
Committee and the investment manager report the
valuation finding to the Board to explain the cause
of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and

liabilities.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include
inputs that are not based on observable market data
to estimate the fair value of certain types of financial
instruments. Note 7 provides detailed information
about the valuation techniques, inputs and key
assumptions used in the determination of the fair
value of financial instruments, as well as the detailed

sensitivity analysis for these assumptions.

The directors of the Company believe that the chosen
valuation techniques and assumptions used are
appropriate in determining the fair value of financial

instruments.
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5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Income tax

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had estimated
unused tax losses of approximately HK$163,603,000
(2014: approximately HK$127,688,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax
assets have been recognised on such tax losses
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future taxable profits
or taxable temporary differences will be available in
the future. In cases where the actual future taxable
profits generated are more than expected, recognition
of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be
recognised in profit or loss for the period in which

such recognition takes place.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to shareholders
through optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group’s overall strategy remained unchanged

from prior year.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure periodically. As part of this review, the
directors of the Company consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues
and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new
debt or the redemption of existing debt. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes as

compared to that in 2014.
The directors of the Company monitor the capital on

the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as

total borrowings divided by total assets.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
The management considers the gearing ratio at the

year ended was as follows:

6. BBy E M (4)

B R RS B B E AR R
LU

2015 2014
—E-RE “Z-NUF
HK$ HK$
7 T

Total borrowings: MR
Corporate bonds NEILi-E=3 20,192,478 -
Loans from a director wHH AR 11,910,881 2,100,000
32,103,359 2,100,000
Total assets MG 94,947,366 116,430,467
Gearing ratio HEAMRLE 33.81% 1.80%

The increase in the gearing ratio during the year
resulted mainly due to the issue of corporate
bonds, new borrowings raised for operation and net
unrealised loss arising on revaluation of financial

assets designated as at FVTPL.
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The table below provided a reconciliation of the
line items in the consolidated statement of financial

—HAFEFZH=F - HIRAEREE
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Categories of financial instruments

position to the categories of financial instruments.

7. S5 A A
& TR 2 R
AR AR A IR 2R IR B
TR 2 B -

2015 2014
— A4 —F -
HKS$ HK$
Financial assets F?f B&E R
Financial assets designated BERFEREEZ
as held for trading s & 38,656,800 33,306,000
Financial assets designated 160 Bk N RBEEETA
as at FVTPL B 2 W& E 25,055,044 75,601,964
Loans and receivables (including & 3k & BEMCR (6135 B 6 K B
cash and cash equivalents) L5 EY) 2,418,037 2,352,158
Assets classified as held for sale %1 & fF 8 2 & 24,930,413 =
91,060,294 111,260,122
Financial liabilities LB B =R
Creditors JE A+ 3R IE 500,000 430
Loans from a director wHRE AN 11,910,881 2,100,000
Corporate bonds NEIK- T 20,192,478 -
32,603,359 2,100,430

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial
liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial

statements approximate their fair values.
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—HEFZH=F IR

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
equity investments, deposits, cash and bank balances,
creditors, corporate bonds and loans from a director.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
the respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (foreign
currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk),
credit risk, liquidity risk and operational risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(1) Risk management
(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign currency risk

The Group has foreign currency

investments in financial assets,
which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. Approximately 55%
(2014:

Group’s financial assets denominated

approximately 68%) of the

in currencies other than the functional
currency of the Company. The
management monitors foreign exchange
exposure by closely monitoring the

movement of foreign currency rate.

The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need

arise.
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
(1) Risk management (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(i) Foreign currency risk (continued)

7. SAws kg A B (A7)

Q) HEEER (F)
(a) WMk (#F)
) SR ()

The significant carrying amounts of the
Group’s foreign currencies denominated
monetary assets at the end of reporting

period are as follows:

AR A A > A 42 [ DAL
WestE BWEEZEK
HREE A F -

2015 2014
"R HE F N
HK$ HK$
# U T
Singapore dollars (“S$7)  Frimk e ([Hm4gg ) 18,411,182 27,073,124
United States dollars £t ([£m])
“us$”H 31,583,875 48,528,840
Sensitivity analysis BB 3 pr
The Group is mainly exposed to the A 45 B B RN T K
effects of fluctuation of the S$ and US$. KILZ KB L2 o
As the HK$ is pegged to the US$, the 7 Hs T B 3 T 4 8
Group considers the risk of movements 7 5 18 58 F v T B 3 T

in exchange rates between the HK$ and
the US$ to be insignificant. Accordingly,
the fluctuation is excluded from the
sensitivity analysis. If the exchange rate
of HK$ against S$§ has been weakened
or strengthened by 5% (2014: 5%), the
Group’s loss for the year would have
been higher or lower by HK$920,559
(2014: HK$1,353,650).
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)
(1) Risk management (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)
(i) Interest rate risk

96

The Group is exposed to fair value
interest rate risk in relation to fixed
coupon rate corporate bonds and fixed
rate loans from a director (2014: fixed
rate loans from a director). The Group is
also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk relating to the Group’s variable-rate
bank balances (2014: variable-rate bank
balances).

The Group’s interest rate risk related
primarily to the variable interest bearing
deposits and debts.

The Group currently does not have an
interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider the
necessary actions when significant
interest rate exposure is anticipated.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rate
risk has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for bank
balances at the end of the reporting
period, which is not significant influence
to the Group’s loss before tax. A 100
basis point change is used which
represents management’s assessment of
the possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates have been 100 (2014:
100) basis points higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the
Group’s loss before tax for the year
ended 31 December 2015 would be
increased/decreased by HK$319,613
(2014: increased/decreased by
HK$20,194).
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 % %

—HAFEFZH=F - HIRAEREE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

(1) Risk management (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(iii) Other price risk

The Group’'s strategy for the
management of market risk is driven by
the Group’s investment objective. The
listed and unlisted equity investments
in Hong Kong and overseas are
measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Therefore, the
Group’s equity investments are exposed
to other price risk. The Group’s market
risk is managed on a regular basis by
the investment manager in accordance
with policies and procedures in place
and are monitored on a regular basis
by the Board. Decisions to buy or
sell trading securities are based on
regular monitoring of the performance
of securities compared to that of the
relevant stock market index and other
industry indicators, as well as the
Group’s liquidity needs. To manage
its price risk arising from the equity
investments, the Group maintains a
portfolio of diversified investments in
terms of industry distribution such as
education and minerals industry sectors.
Temporarily, the Group’s management
has monitored price risk and will

consider hedging of the risk if necessary.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % — % —f4E+ A =1+—HILFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

98

(continued)
(1) Risk management (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)
(iii) Other price risk (continued)

The management manages the exposure
of financial assets designated as at
FVTPL by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk and
return profiles. The Group’s equity price
risk is mainly concentrated on equity
instruments operating in securities and
brokerage industry sectors quoted in the
Stock Exchange.

The Group has not hedged its price
risk arising from investments in equity
securities. The Group’s securities
investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange are valued at the quoted
market prices at the reporting date.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been
determined based on the exposure to
equity price risks at the end of reporting
period. For sensitively analysis purpose,
the sensitivity rate remains at 15% in the
current year.

If listed equity prices had been 15%
higher/lower for financial assets
designated as held for trading (2014:
15% higher/lower), loss for the year
ended 31 December 2015 would be
decreased/increased by HK$5,798,520
(2014: decreased/increased by
HK$4,995,900). If the unlisted equity
prices had been increased/decreased
by 15% for financial assets designated
as at FVTPL (2014: 15%) and all other
variables were held constant, loss for the
year ended 31 December 2015 would be
decreased/increased by HK$3,758,257
(2014: decreased/increased by
HK$11,340,295).

7. B AR B (A )

(1) REEEE ()
(a) 175 a B (4)
Giii) F A 15 75 Ja g (4 )
PR G DA AR5 A [m] JaL g A
W 5 BB AL S BAE
LA REEF AR Z
P Y R o A 4 [
P4 P A 1 0 o 2 2 T 4
A R 5 I KR O AT SR
P14 P A 65 5 2 i 22 BT 2 ik
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IR B WA S B R
JBe AR I3 BT 5 e 22 A A% Ja
B o A4 1Y) 7 27 B R
22 B b i 4 8 A
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DA B0/ 7 A 2 7 i o
S AR 32 A {8 A Jo g 7t
SE o WL AU A T T
T 7 A B U GR AR R AE
15% ©

WiteE R FEEE E 2
B2 LHAER L
T+ T #15% (—F—Y
F b T B15%) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
5E A B TR B
For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % —F —HFE T+ - H=+—HIEFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7. M mkEER (F)

(continued)
(1) Risk management (continued) (1) JRBEE B ()
(b) Credit risk (b) 15 B BE

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty
will be unable or unwilling to meet a
commitment that it has entered into with the
Group. Financial assets which potentially
subject the Group to concentrations of credit
risk consist principally of financial assets at
FVTPL, bank balances and deposits.

The Group limits its exposure to credit
risk by transacting the majority of its
financial assets and contractual commitment
activities with brokers, banks and regulated
exchanges with high credit ratings and that
the Group considers to be well established.
All transactions in listed financial assets
are settled/paid for upon delivery using
approved and reputable brokers. Accordingly
the Group has no significant concentration
of credit risk.

(c¢) Liquidity risk

The Group invests in both listed and unlisted
equity investments which are classified as
financial assets at FVTPL. The listed equity
investment is considered readily realisable
as it is listed in the Stock Exchange. The
unlisted equity investments may not be
traded in an organised public market and
may be illiquid. As a result, the Group
may not be able to liquidate quickly its
investments in these instruments at an
amount close to their fair value in order to
meet its liquidity requirements or to respond
to specific events such as deterioration
in the creditworthiness of any particular
issuer. Prudent liquidity risk management
implies maintaining sufficient cash and cash
equivalents in order to fulfil the Group’s
financial liabilities.

Annual Report 2015 4E#t

15 B2 B ) 45 58 5 ¥ 07 % R
AE BN 7R <y B A 4 T T
R 2 A o A5 T e
TR AR AR B B 2 BB A
EEEHAAEE N R EERA
B4k 2 85 B - SRAT RS R X
o

A B2 [ BLAC 40 ~ SRAT KA R B
RRAABEZEFEEFRZ
HUE 3 5y B BB ORG 4 B
B R E SOET A HURIETE B -
LA BR ] L 7 7R 46 2 A5 B JRU R <
P A b i R R S 5 4 4R
FH 8 AT B R 4 A8 A A2 A
B AR e PR - AR 4R S
e INE S N Y

i B & < b

AR R B e Ok BT
e A 45 T R 0 O
NABEF ARG MHEE
FE o T BEAS BB R S R B
I3 ] A B 28 BT A B - JF T A
ABLENRRAFTSGEE
B JF Ui 7 64 o R > AS 4R AT
AE ML PR b A BB S8 T R
M EeEEREHARE
1B DA i 2 H 97 8 1 5 5K B e
JREAREAE AT (AT AR 45 8 B AT
N5 &AL - TR R E)
VB B R R IR A
i B 4 70 B < 55 (E ) DL 2
4 A 5 TAT o

99



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok 3 S 285 i A B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #% %

—HEFZH=F IR

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

(1) Risk management (continued)

100

7. S4B ke A B (A7)

(1) BB ()

(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) B E &M bE ()
The following tables detail the Group’s DL R a7 A 4 B B B &
remaining contractual maturity for its BRI ERSF B E > Eh
financial liabilities which are included in the AL A A HR A R
maturity analysis provided internally to the 1 H 43 B DAFE £ 5 28 B
key management personnel for the purpose JEL B o T FE i A I S B AR
of managing liquidity risk. For non-derivative RO W TR B 6 &
financial liabilities, the table reflects the (1) 3 55 B R B A A 4 I
undiscounted cash flows of financial LR B AR B H A E o it
liabilities based on the earliest date on FHFEFEMASB LR -
which the Group can be required to pay. The
tables include both interest and principal
cash flow.
2015
“E Lk
Weighted Total Total
average On Within Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate demand 1 year 1-5 years 5 years cash flows amounts
A8
T A% Bk L —Eh BBIE BEREAH LR
% HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
% i e T i i 7
Creditors JE £ 5 - 500,000 - - - 500,000 500,000
Loans from a director % 52 &7k 6 - 12,380,071 - - 12,380,071 11,910,881
Corporate bonds KRR 6 - - 11,500,000 18,874,384 30,374,384 20,192,478
500,000 12,380,071 11,500,000 18,874,384 43,254,455 32,603,359
2014
e ol 12
Weighted Total Total
average On Within Over  undiscounted carrying
interest rate demand 1 year 1-5 years 5 years cash flows amounts
K
HEFE % %k —£R —EHE BRLE HERELH SR E
% HKS HKS HKS HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
Creditors NN - 430 - - - 430 430
Loans from a director ~ #$ Z & 6 = 2,163,000 - - 2,163,000 2,100,000
40 2,163,000 - - 2,163,430 2,100,430
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % —F —HFE T+ - H=+—HIEFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

(1) Risk management (continued)

(¢) Liquidity risk (continued)

()

Taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the directors consider that the
probability of exercise the redemption
right of the corporate bonds is remote. The
directors believe that such corporate bonds

will be repaid on the maturity date.

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or
indirect (loss) profit arising from a wide
variety of causes associated with the
processes and technology supporting
the Group’s operations either internally
within the Group or externally at the
Group’s service provider, and from external
factors other than credit, market and
liquidity risks such as those arising from
legal and regulatory requirements and
generally accepted standards of investment
management behavior. Operational risks

arise from all of the Group’s activities.

The Group’s objective is to manage
operational risk so as to balance limiting of
financial losses and damage to its reputation
with achieving its investment objective of

generating returns to investors.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % — % —f4E+ A =1+—HILFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7. B AR B (A )
(continued)
(1) Risk management (continued) (1) EBEERE (4 )
(d) Operational risk (continued) d) ZHEEE (%)
The primary responsibility for the %%1%@(?&?’%%&%175'
development and implementation of controls ):23”}“% Z E I o W B AT H B
over operational risk rests with the Board. B8 P 0 R B &kﬁ@*ﬁﬁ_ﬁ
This responsibility is supported by the R > Houp Bk ik e e 2 B 4
development of overall standards for the B > DA K £ MBS 48 1 7
management of operational risk, which AT S 5 i 5 JIR B K HE -

encompasses the controls and processes at
the service providers and the establishment
of service levels with the service providers,

in the following areas:

s requirements for appropriate segregation o HRE B E B & T AR
of duties between various functions, Ak EEZRE

roles and responsibilities;

i
t

ER

* requirements for the reconciliation and c

)

B &
Nl
i
S

monitoring of the transactions;

* compliance with regulatory and other o HESFEE R HAb M
legal requirements; JE 5

« documentation of controls and o DIMEECER B AR
procedures;

* requirements for the periodic assessment o HLE E WETAR BT S
of operational risks faced, and the JR Bk > DA B i B i ik il
adequacy of controls and procedures to bpz B RERXER L
address the risks identified; B s

e contingency plans; o EEEFHE

» ethical and business standards; and o FETE P EAEUE K

* risk mitigation, including insurance o W E B BLAE PR B (i
where this is effective. A%
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % —F —HFE T+ - H=+—HIEFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

(1) Risk management (continued)

7. SAws kg A B (A7)

(1) EEEER ()
(d) HEEEE ()
T 308 R ) LR 5 A E

(d) Operational risk (continued)

The directors’ assessment over the adequacy

of the controls and processes in place at the
service providers with respect to operational
risks is carried out via regular discussions
with the service providers and a review of
the service providers’ reports on internal

controls, where available and practicable.

HEAT Wl > LA e B A 5 it e
PR 2 TR B Ry (A AT
T) o WA AR S A3 E B IR A
o e 7 Ja By 2 B MR SR
A o

(2) &M THZARFEME

(2) Fair value measurement of financial
instruments

(a) %A PEHE DL A A st

(a) Fair value of the Group’s financial

assets and financial liabilities that are
measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and

financial liabilities are measured at fair

25 2 A5 B B B Y
AGH R E

TRt R > ASE B T I
B & E N B A RN U E

value at the end of each reporting period. B R o T R4 HEA BR o] fe
The following table gives information about JE % S s e B AR
how the fair values of these financial assets A RMEEZER (JUHE A
and financial liabilities are determined (in ik (B H 17 B2 iy A 8088 )

particular, the valuation techniques and

inputs used).

Relationship of

Fair value  Valuation technique(s) Significant the significant input
Financial assets Fair value as at 31 December hierarchy and key input unobservable input(s)  for fair value
i i REZRE4 -2 AR AABEFSE HENRREEHAUSE  EXATEEGAME  HARRETKRARKZEG
2015 2014
ZE-nk ZE—NE
Financial assets Listed equity Listed equity ~ Level 1 Quoted market bid price in ~ N/A N/A
designated as held investment investment an active market
for trading in Hong Kong in Hong Kong
HK$38,656,800 HK$33,300,000
RERRFREL REE LTRARE  REELIRARE S8 ERTG L2 HSEARE  TER AR
BHEE K iE 38,656,800% 7t 33,306,000 76
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #% %

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

(2) Fair value measurement of financial

—HEFZH=F IR

7. MR E M (4

instruments (continued)

(a) Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities that are
measured at fair value on a recurring

basis (continued)

&)

(2) & THZ A RBEMEGE ()

(€)) L8 o P R D 4 2 AT
17 2 A5 Y R B
AEARMEM ()

Relationship of

Fair value  Valuation technique(s) Significant the significant input
Financial assets Fair value as at 31 December hierarchy and key input unobservable input(s)  for fair value
A REZAZ+ -2 AR AABEFSE HEERREERAGSE  EXATHEGANE  HARRETKWARKZEE
2015 2014
ZE-LkE “Z-PE
Financial assets Unlisted equity Unlisted equity

designated as at investments investments

FVTPL in overseas in overseas
- E-Com Holdings - E-Com Holdings ~ Level 3 Income approach - in this  Discount rate 17.07%
Pte. Ltd. Pte. Ltd. approach, the discounted (2014: 17.09%)
HK$18,401,582 HK$27,073,124 cash flow method was
used to capture the
present value of the
expected future economic
benefits to be derived
from the ownership of
investee.
Discount for lack
of marketability
(‘DLOM”) 11.00%
(2014: 10.00%)
e B ikA R B E RSP i AN b
UNE:va i3 1 Ak B & A S g
E-Com Holdings E-Com Holdings ~ #%=% WARE - MR BB 17.07%
Pte. Ltd. Pte. Lid. BREREERBEZR  (SF-TE17.00%)
18,401,582i i 27,073,124 ¢ BARBAERELZH
HRAE R4 < B -

WARRHRE (B

RMBE ) 1%

(2~ 10.00% )
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10% increase (decrease)
in discount rate would
result in (decrease)
increase in fair value
by (HK$2,149,210) and
HK$2,703,164 respectively
(2014: decrease
HK$3,061,795 and
increase HK$3,499,097
respectively).

10% increase (decrease) in
DLOM would result in
(decrease) increase in fair
value by (HK$257,654)
and HK$257,090
respectively (2014:
decrease HK$301,938
and increase HK$281,554
respectively).

AL (B0 ) 100 6
BAREEM (BD)
B0 (2,149,210 70) &
2,703, 164170 (=%~
B AR D3,061,795
TERIE3,499,097H 7C) ©

A LB R ()
10%8E E 50 A B2 B
(B) 5 (257,6541
76) K257,090i ¢ (=%
— 4 4 301,938
70 281 5541
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % %

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

(2) Fair value measurement of financial

instruments (continued)

(a) Fair value of the Group’s financial

—HAFEFZH=F - HIRAEREE

7. S4B L b A B

(#

)

2) &M THRZAREMEE (4)

(a) ZAE W HEHE D 2 A (1 At
25 2 A5 B B B Y

assets and financial liabilities that are

measured at fair value on a recurring

basis (continued)

AEAREM (4)

Relationship of

Fair value  Valuation technique(s) Significant the significant input
Financial assets Fair value as at 31 December hierarchy and key input unobservable input(s)  for fair value
i i REZRE4 -2 AR AABEFSE HENRREEHAUSE  EXATEEGAME  HARRETKRARKZEG
2015 2014
“ERhE “F -
Financial assets Unlisted equity Unlisted equity

designated as at
FVTPL

HEBIA R B
INtvd 3

investments investments

in overseas in overseas

- Vaca Energy, LLC - Vaca Energy, LLC

HK$6,653,462 HK$23,575,462
AN TSN L
A A &

- Vaca Energy,LLC
6,653,462 70

- Vaca Energy, LLC
23,575,462i T

Level 3 Income approach” - in this
approach, the discounted
cash flow method was
used to capture the
present value of the
expected future economic
benefits to be derived
from the ownership of
these investees.

Market approach” - in this

approach, guideline

public company method
was adopted to compare
the prices at which other
similar listed companies
and adjusted to reflect the
specific circumstance of
the investments.

H=H WA —TE BT RUFRG
RREREERFEZ L
UNGE XL ]
WA B

Tk — Rk R
IARATE DB
HHE LA R 2 R
AEUR B E 2 R
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Discount rate 11.64%
(2014: 8.34%)

DLOM 41.96%
(2014: 26.10%)

RBL% 11.64%
ZR— U4 834%)

VLA AR R R BL41.96%

(ZF—JU4E 1 26.10%)

10% increase (decrease)
in discount rate would
result in (decrease)
increase in fair value
by (HK$150,723) and
HK$176,255 respectively
(2014: decrease
HK$521,601 and increase
HK$593,465 respectively).

10% increase (decrease) in
DLOM would result in
(decrease) increase in fair
value by (HKS$1,086,489)
and HK$1,086,491
respectively (2014:
decrease HK$976,777
and increase HK$976,725
respectively).

B (B ) 10%8
BN AB A O8
D) (150,7231 78) &
176,255 76 (=%~
A R DS 21,6018 7T
T s m593,4658 )

WA ERB R (6D)
10%8 A A EEA
() 3 (1,086,489%
J6) 1,086, 4913 G (=%
— 4 976,777
7T X 976,725
) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % — % —f4E+ A =1+—HILFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
(2) Fair value measurement of financial
instruments (continued)
(a) Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities that are
measured at fair value on a recurring

basis (continued)

7. MR E M (4

&)

(2) & THZ A RBEMEGE ()

(€)) L8 o P R D 4 2 AT
17 2 A5 Y R B
AEARMEM ()

Relationship of

Fair value  Valuation technique(s) Significant the significant input
Financial assets Fair value as at 31 December hierarchy and key input unobservable input(s)  for fair value
A REZAEF—R2Z AR R AAREFS MESHRIEGARE  EXATREHANE  RAREEEAGARKZNRE
2015 2014
“ERLE e SIS
Financial assets N/A* Unlisted equity
designated as at investment
FVTPL in Hong Kong
- New Tai Ming ~ Level 3 Income approach - in this  Discount rate N/A N/A (2014: 10% increase
Investments approach, the discounted ~ (2014: 16.07%) (decrease) in discount
International cash flow method was rate would result in
Limited used to capture the (decrease) increase in fair
HK$24,953,378 present value of the value by (HK$2,752,752)
expected future economic and HK$3,165,568
benefits to be derived respectively.)
from the ownership of
these investees.
DLOM N/A N/A (2014: 10% increase
(2014: 10.00%) (decrease) in DLOM
would result in (decrease)
increase in fair value
by (HK$256,885) and
HK$233,323 respectively.)
WiE B AR ER iy 1iN REEF L
ARG B R %347
-“HAMREERER  F=R WA -TEd Tk FIRE BB TR (ZF—ME 5
124,953 378H 0 BRERBERGEZS  (CF-WE100m) B (ED)10%EE

Vaca Energy, LLC had three licenses of oil leases

ENTRAEREE R
AR AR G 2 B -

LA B R
(ZF—T410%)

HARBEM (BD)
s (2,752,752 70) R
3,165,568 78) °

A (ZF—E i8R
BB R (5)10%
FEIARBEEM (B
D) B (256,885 78 ) &
233 3231 70)

permit to operate. One lease was valued using
income approach and the other two were valued
using market approach.

The unlisted equity investment was presented as

assets classified as held for sale as at 31 December
2015.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % —F —HFE T+ - H=+—HIEFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7. WMBmREEM ()
(continued)
(2) Fair value measurement of financial Q) &M THZA REMHGE ()
instruments (continued)

(a) Fair value of the Group’s financial (a) LA PR D A 2 E AT
assets and financial liabilities that are 72 NI BB BB EE e B
measured at fair value on a recurring AERAREME ()
basis (continued)

Valuation processes of the Group K LE [B] 1915 (8 07 R

The management of the Group reviews A 4 R B T A A R b iR
the estimation of fair value of the unlisted A& B A EEZ A
equity investments which are categorised KRS REESE RS =] o
into Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. ZEE EHRABRENA R
Fair values of these unlisted equity %ﬁi"]%%%jﬁgﬁgﬁ
investments are determined with reference B AT 2 Ak A 18 2 - B g
to the valuation reports prepared by an ﬁfﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ{}\ﬁﬁﬁ i R Y
independent professional valuer. Discussion Ko v 47 A B2 T B9 b 3 %
of the valuation process and results with the EE*&%Z% °

management is held twice a year, for the

Group’s interim and annual reporting.

During the year ended 31 December 2015 BE_F—HAFEL=F—N
and 2014, there were no significant transfers iﬁﬂ—#ﬂ =+—H JJ:EEI%J 2
between financial instruments in Level 1, 2 Gt T EAESE — 4 55 4l
and 3. CIEN TALL R N Y
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % — % —f4E+ A =1+—HILFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7. WMHREEM ()
(continued)
(2) Fair value measurement of financial Q) &M THZA REMEGZ ()
instruments (continued)

(a) Fair value of the Group’s financial (a) LA P H P A 2 E A A
assets and financial liabilities that are 72 K5 Y B AR
measured at fair value on a recurring AR BN ()
basis (continued)

Fair value hierarchy AR

The following table provides an analysis T REAA RS HEREEA
of financial instruments that are measured REMHFTEZ &M TEZ 5
subsequent to initial recognition at fair Br (3 A B EZ /] SRR E
value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based BEE—E =) -

on the degree to which the fair value is

observable.

2015
ZE N
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B W W=k At
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
P W W Wt
Financial assets W&
Financial assets at A REERA
FVTPL: Bd 2 BT
Listed equity b kAR E
investment 38,656,800 - - 38,656,800
Unlisted equity F b A E
investments - - 25,055,044 25,055,044
38,656,800 - 25,055,044 63,711,844
2014
ZE— 4
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B 5 HE=5 st
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
T T T T
Financial assets V4 ¥ &
Financial assets at &/ A EEFHA
FVTPL: Bd 2 B E
Listed equity bk ARE
investment 33,306,000 - - 33,306,000
Unlisted equity B RAZE
investments = = 75,601,964 75,601,964
33,306,000 - 75,601,964 108,907,964
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 % %

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

—HAFEFZH=F - HIRAEREE
e

(2) Fair value measurement of financial

instruments (continued)

St 5 I B A B (A7)

2) &M THRZARBEMGE ()

(b) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value (b) B =K MM aH I
measurements
2015 2014
I S K TR A
HK$ HK$
W o
At 1 January w—H—H 75,601,964 =
Payment for purchases O - 71,279,157
Unrealised (loss) gain recognised i 18 % 58 2 A& 5 Bl
in profit or loss (e 18) U % (23,995,344) 5,762,710
Transfer to assets classified as ) 5 S 2
held for sale HE (25,007,415) =
Exchange loss, net ifE 54, 5 15 13 % (1,544,161) (1,439,903)
At 31 December wt_H=+—H 25,055,044 75,601,964

©

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets

and financial liabilities that are not

measured at fair value on a recurring

basis (but fair value disclosure are

required)

The directors of the Company consider

that the carrying amounts of financial

assets and financial liabilities recognised

in the consolidated

financial statements

approximate their fair values.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % — % —f4E+ A =1+—HILFE

8.

110

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME, GAINS
AND LOSSES
An analysis of revenue and other income, gains and

losses is as follows:

8. Wk & H At A ~ W g3 K s 18

W g K H
T

e A~ Wi dE % s 48 23 A

2015 2014
“R-HE F U
HK$ HK$
7 T
Revenue: W £
Dividend income & Bl A - =
Other income, gains and FC Al e A~ Wi g B s A8 -
losses:
Income from office sharing RKEFLHFEAZZ WA 79,750 -
Interest income FLE WA - 24
Gain on disposal of furniture, S HE K
fixtures and equipment R 2 I A5 - 22,194
Exchange loss, net e 54, 5 15 1 R (1,606,501) (1,441,080)
Sundry income HERA 80,251 -
(1,446,500) (1,418,862)
SEGMENT INFORMATION 9. HMEH
Business segments E/ T
During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, 2 S Sl TN O e Sl U1V iy

the Group’s revenue and net loss mainly derived
from the realised gain on disposal of financial assets
designated as held for trading, unrealised gain arising
on revaluation of financial assets designated as held
for trading and unrealised (loss) gain arising on
revaluation of financial assets designated as at FVTPL.
The directors of the Company consider that these
activities constitute one business segment since these
transactions are subject to common risks and returns.
Given that the nature of the Group’s operation is
investment holdings, it is not considered meaningful
to provide a business segment analysis of operating

loss.

H=+—HIEERX, 2!—‘4%@]245(@
L R B £ B B B 4 E B AR
HE B EE 2 C 8B 6 A
RERFREZMBEENELZ
R B B 4 e H A % 2 F B (R AR
oz M EE T EL 2 REE (E1R)
Wt o AN FIE RS HIRZELS
TE 35 A ) Ja e B = A ST [ S > PRI
i% 55 B — TS A B R A
EERENEBEEER R
BERZEHFE BT ERAK
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % —F —HFE T+ - H=+—HIEFE

9.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical segments

The Group’s segment assets and liabilities which
represent furniture, fixtures and equipment, financial
assets at FVTPL, assets classified as held for sale,

deposit received in advance and corporate bonds for

9. FMER (H)
i I 53 %5
AEEERNZ I BEE LA (15
TR~ 5 B R el - 1A LB RE AR
i 2 BB - S B i B 2 -
Wiz B2 (B ) 0 M 1735 43T 0

the year, analysed by geographical market, are as T
follows:
2015
“F-LE
PRC (except United States
Hong Kong)  Hong Kong Singapore of America Total
LiE NN
3 A
(BRI it Bk EMBARN it
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Segment assets HEEE 24,930,413 42,458,753 18,401,582 6,653,462 92,444,210
Unallocated assets K& B 2,503,156
Total assets B A 94,947,366
Segment liabilities e - 28,348,458 - - 28,348,458
Unallocated liabilities 2 L £ 18,439,281
Total liabilities AN 46,787,739
2014
ZER—
PRC (except United States
Hong Kong) Hong Kong Singapore of America Total
hIE AR
A
(R i e EMERERE Mt
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HKS$
W T T T ey T
Segment assets NEHEE 24,953,378 38,425,493 27,073,124 23,575,462 114,027,457
Unallocated assets KoL G 2,403,010
Total assets GEAHE 116,430,467
Segment liabilities AR = = = = =
Unallocated liabilities FAmE 7,867,969
Total liabilities BEAE 7,867,969
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #% %

—HEFZH=F IR

10.LOSS FROM OPERATIONS 10. 78 % i 1
2015 2014
R -HE CF-E
HK$ HK$
Loss from operations has been EN/NEIE? SN RN i
arrived at after charging JiREAnkR (5t A) R 31
(crediting): FIAZ AT
Auditor’s remuneration 1% B3R I <2 330,000 250,000
Investment management fee & E 2,278,758 1,412,190
Depreciation of furniture, AL~ 4 B R 2 AT B
fixtures and equipment 1,317,540 1,310,131
Exchange loss, net ifE 53, 15 18 1 ¥ 1,606,501 1,441,080
Net gain on disposal of BRI RE R
furniture, fixtures and L@ RELE |
equipment - (22,194)
Net realised gain on disposal of HERELFFIEEEZ
financial assets designated as WM EEZ B
held for trading g TRETE ] - (1,856,849)
Net unrealised gain arising on HAGIEERIFEREZ
revaluation of financial assets Wb 5 R T R A 2
designated as held for trading o 53 B 43 1 AE (5,350,800) (15,683,840)
Net unrealised loss (gain) Al 16 € B A R EE
arising on revaluation of A ATE £ 2 B BS B
financial assets designated as Jit i A 2 R 5 B 1R
at FVTPL (k) 3 23,995,344 (5,762,710)
Operating lease rentals in NHEHE Z
respect of EHAHE
— office equipment g NET ] 40,000 35,092
- office premises — WA EY ¥ 8,177,899 7,977,433
Directors’ remuneration and M E N B TA
staff costs
— salaries, allowance and —¥ra - BN K
other benefits in kind HoAth ) 48 F 15,011,192 17,338,059
— contributions to MPF *?Mfé“r%ﬂ it 3K
Scheme 266,903 307,547
EAGLE RIDE INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED  J§ J1 Bt ¥ #5 B FiR 4
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B % —F—HE+ " A=1—HIL4FE

11.FINANCE COSTS 11. % #H
2015 2014
—R-HE —E-N4E
HK$ HK$
Interest on: FEH
Loans from a director HEZHENK
— wholly repayable — AR — N TR
within one year 317,697 =
Corporate bonds (Note 24) NFMESE (B it24)
— wholly repayable — JH A A N R R
within five years 844,719 -
— not wholly repayable — IR A AR N R R R
within five years 588,375 =
1,750,791 -
12.INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12 i 13 Bi B X
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the T s FI A5 B LA 5% W9 {0 4F B 2 Al 5T E R
estimated assessable profits for both years. ol Ui M 4% B #616.5% 51 55 o
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been H A 7 4R [ T 5% A 18 4 2 ST 406 AT o] JE
made for both years as the Group did not have any B i A o WOIE B A B 8 4 R A
assessable profits. T I 15 Bl A LA A
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #% %

—HE+ A= —HIEFEE
12.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

12. i3 BEBH =% (#)

114

The income tax expense for the year can be
reconciled to the loss before tax per the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income as follows:

RN BT A BB S B4R A iR 4R R HoAh &
TR 4 35 2 PR B AT S iR IR U -

2015 2014
“E—h4E ZE— U
HK$ HK$
Loss before tax (ST, SR (60,402,871) (25,202,733)
Hong Kong Profits Tax 275 s M AR BB #£16.5%
calculated at the rate of 16.5% (ZZF—DU4:16.5%)
(2014: 16.5%) FHE 2 BiIH (9,966,474) (4,158,451)
Tax effect of expenses not AN] FNH B S 2 B R
deductible for tax purpose 4,750,114 932,821
Tax effect of income not T ZERR B A 2 B 5 2 2
taxable for tax purpose (882,882) (3,543,033)
Tax effect on temporary o T w0 T IR 22 B 2 B s
differences not recognised 173,227 135,004
Tax effect on tax losses % T 58 Bl TH Jis 48 2 B s 2
not recognised 5,926,015 6,633,659

N BT AR B 5C

Income tax expense for the year

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
has estimated unrecognised tax losses of
approximately HK$163,603,000 (2014: approximately
HK$127,688,000) to set off against future taxable
income. No deferred tax asset is recognised in
respect of such tax losses carried forward as the
realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits could not be reasonably assessed. The
tax losses do not have expiry date under the current

tax legislation.

The Group had no material unprovided deferred tax
liabilities at the end of the reporting period (2014:
HK$niD.

AR AR > A B 2 Al Rt R MR R E
&5 8 4 £5163,603,0004% 7C ( ~ZF — 1
4 £9127,688,000% 7€) > Al LA K 8
FAEFEBMLA - H K BE A B FEAG LA
7 B SR B Ui ) A B AR BRBLES B £
A SNf7 40 ) % S A B T A 4 T R A
BiJE & 7E o ARPEHATRLIL > BlIE 4R
48 iz o H 9 -

TP e R > A 4 B Sl 48 A e B K OR
BFEEBHAME (T U R
JL) °
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5E A B TR B
For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % —F —HFE T+ - H=+—HIEFE

13.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section

13. £ 5 &
HRAE LB > i A B 1 35 6223
38300 F o~ F] (B 5 ¥ R 45 E RE) B
B2 P gE W T

383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Cap.
622 and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation,
are as follows:

(a) ¥ 3P & B 3L At 76 A

(a) Directors’ emoluments and other benefits

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE_F-HL¥ET+T-HA=1+—H

1E4E
Salaries, Employer’s
allowance and  contributions
other benefits to MPF  Discretionary Total
Fee in kind Scheme bonuses emoluments
Bido R i At 3
we  HeERREM PAENT A B AL T 4 4%
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Executive director WiES
Chan Yiu Pun, Clement BRIEH - 1,032,000 18,000 80,000 1,130,000
Non-executive directors  FEPIT &
Hu Haisong B 2,400,000 - - 200,000 2,600,000
Tung Shu Sun (Chairman) — EBE (£ 960,000 - - 80,000 1,040,000
Li Yunshan (Note 2) ZEM (Mi2) 210,000 560,000 - - 770,000
Fred Aminzadeh (Note 3)  Fred Aminzadeh (/3 325,500 - - - 325,500
Independent non- BukafEs
executive directors
Gui Shengyue AN 360,000 - - 30,000 390,000
Wang Xianzhang IEE 360,000 - - 30,000 390,000
Vichai Phaisalakani EH 300,000 - - 20,000 320,000
Total emoluments 4 4% 4,915,500 1,592,000 18,000 440,000 6,965,500
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #% %

13.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments and other benefits

—HEFZH=F IR

13. 55 ME ()
(a) HHEMERILmEA (A)

(continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE_F—-WE+_H=+—H
1E4F E
Salaries, Employer’s
allowance and contributions
other benefits to MPF  Discretionary Total
Fee in kind Scheme bonuses emoluments
B iR ol in
e HEnEN VA EX T WAL i 4 48 58
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT T T S Wt
Executive director ESR
Chan Yiu Pun, Clement — PRIEH - 960,000 16,750 33,534 1,010,284
Non-executive directors  JEH{7 &% %
Hu Haisong i 2,400,000 - - 200,000 2,600,000
Tung Shu Sun (Chairman) — E ¥ (/) 960,000 = = 80,000 1,040,000
Ping Kim (Note 1) T8l (k1) 300,000 - - 60,000 360,000
Li Yunshan (Note 2) B (i) 305,000 800,000 = = 1,105,000
Fred Aminzadeh (Note 3)  Fred Aminzadeh (/i3 186,000 = = = 186,000
Independent non- BunEs
executive directors
Gui Shengyue HEEN 360,000 = - 5,014 365,014
Wang Xianzhang TEE 360,000 - - 5,014 365,014
Wu Ding (Note 4) RT (M) 200,000 - - 8,336 208,356
Vichai Phaisalakani FEHH 240,000 - - 3,342 243 342
Total emoluments & 4% 5,311,000 1,760,000 16,750 393,260 7,483,010
Notes: ME -

1.  Appointed on 11 November 2013 and retired on 13 May
2014.

2. Appointed on 24 February 2014 and resigned on 16
November 2015.

3. Appointed on 1 July 2014 and resigned on 16 November
2015.

4. Appointed on 1 November 2013 and resigned on 9 April
2014.
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E3
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TAFE+—H +75 B RHE -
WeEEH — HERAT Rk —

F—HE+T—H TN HEHE
4. MNZF—=F—H— HERLE LR
TP A JLH BT
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 % %

—HAFEFZH=F - HIRAEREE

13.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments and other benefits

(continued)

The director’'s emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Group during
the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to the directors as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.

During the year ended 31 December 2015,
two non-executive directors’ emoluments of
approximately HK$151,000 have been waived
(2014: HK$niD).

During the year, no share options were granted
to the directors to subscribe for ordinary shares
of the Company under the Company’s share

option scheme (2014: nil).

There were no payments made or benefit
provided in respect of the termination of the
service of directors, whether in the capacity of

directors or in any other capacity while directors.
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13. 3 & ()
() EHMERIMER (H)

FERIABRE _ZF-HENR_ZF
—mWE+_A=+—HILFEER
B 2 4 T B R A A Y R B B
B A A ) 1 265 AH B o
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IR 22 #8 <5 B8 Bk Ik Al 1 o
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IEAEBEIN - W 45 FF AT 26 25 i S T
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % %

—HEFZH=F IR

13.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

b)

©

(d)

(e)

)

118

Directors’ material interests in transaction,
arrangements or contracts

Apart from the disclosure in note 32(a)(4), no
other significant transactions, arrangement and
contracts in relation to the Company’s business
to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the

year (2014: approximately HK$821,000).

Information about loans, quali-loans

and other dealing in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporates and connected
entities of such directors

The Company had not paid or incurred any
liability for the purpose of fulfilling the
guarantee or discharging the security given
to others for loans granted to the directors,
or controlled body corporates and connected
entities of such directors (2014: HK$nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year, the Company did not pay
consideration to any third parties for making

available directors’ services (2014: HK$nil).

Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive
any retirement benefits during the year (2014:
HK$nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive
any termination benefits during the year (2014:
HK$nil).

13. 55 & (#F)

b)

(O]

(d)

(e)

)

HWHRRG ~ Wk R E R
HE 3

B B 5E32(a)(4) A Ab > A 48 A B
AT T A JaB 2 ) M R T S7 Al AT o]
AN ) R R
A K RE £ 1A A 4R B R 5l A 4R
JE QAT fu] 1R A5 08 AR K 2 BRLAR
AEFARZERGH (ZF—N
4 1 #1821,000%% 7C)

A B VA S > 2 EE 05N M
A BT N 2 R A B
A~ K R At 2R 5 1 B R

AN AL EAT B LA B o - 2 PRI
N T B % % S A B R R
5% N B R R &me%
AT A B A AT AT BAE: (

— 4 F D)

VL W H o IR 5 i 3 A58 =
Z R fH

AT > A ) M A LA B R
B 2 SRS =T5 2 AUE (=
F—4F: FHET)

4 02 0 7
1F 7 90 4 TS O
RN SR SE SH

A% Ik i B R A

AF TR > AR B8 S AT B R i B A
1k AR 5 A A (= F — I AF T
JT) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B % —EF—HE+ - A=1+—HIL4FE

14.FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
The five highest paid employees of the Group

during the year included three directors (2014: three #HH (

directors), details of whose emoluments are set out
in note 13 above. The emoluments of the remaining (
two (2014: two) highest paid employees who are not

a director of the Company are as follows:

14. T4 i v B < 18 B

A4 4 0 O 4 =
SE R 4 ER)
B S S 313 -
AR ) 5 B 4 Y
W% (JEA TR I

KiE
o H 5 T 44

2015 2014

e ek 1 —E— Y 4E

HK$ HK$

Basic salaries and other benefits & 48 3 4 K H Ath 47 F| 2,256,000 2,245714
Discretionary bonuses IR R (AN 188,000 23,397
Contributions to MPF schemes A 4w E kK 36,000 33,500
Total emoluments P < 48 %8 2,480,000 2,302,611
2015 2014

—E LA R —4E

No. of No. of

Emoluments bands T 4 W JEE employees employees
BB ¥H & B #H

HK$nil to HK$1,000,000 W 6 21,000,000 76 - 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 %% JC £1,500,0004% JC 2 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 %5 7T %£2,000,000%% JG - =
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001%% 7€ £2,500,000%5 7T - -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001%5 7T £3,000,000%5 JC - =
2 2

During the year, no remuneration (2014: HK$niD)
was paid by the Group to any of the highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join the Group or as

. . :—'—»
compensation for loss of office. =
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14

15.

16.

120

—HEFZH=F IR

.FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

(continued)

During the year, no share options to subscribe for
ordinary shares of the Company were granted to
employees under the Company’s share option scheme
(2014: niD).

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed during 2015, nor
has any dividend been proposed since the end of the
reporting period (2014: HK$nil).

LOSS PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per
share attributable to owners of the Company is based

on the following data:

14. hameaMelEs ()

AR RIS R B R R > A
AR TR B AR I A 2 ] B 3 A

By ( —F— U 4 - )
15. 1t 8
W E—HAEE W&E%’zﬁb%ﬁﬂimﬂf

O o 5 1 O (o L (=% —
BT

16. 1k & 18
EN/NCIE ZEWN SRS & wNYSE 3 o
BRI T BT EA W

2015 2014
“EHAE —E -4
HK$ HK$
iU T
Loss for the purpose of basic loss it 5 % it 5 A 5 0 2 5 1
per share
Loss for the year attributable to AN AR A N AL 4F 1A s 4R
owners of the Company 60,402,871 25,202,733

bt 4y ¥ H

Number of shares
Weighted average number of
e 788 5 AR - 38 B

ordinary shares for the purpose of

basic loss per share

st RS REAERZ

1,500,058,784  1,499,792,375

The weighted average number of 1,500,058,784
(2014: 1,499,792,375) ordinary shares for the purpose
of basic loss per share has been adjusted for the
bonus warrants exercised and shares subdivision in

last year.

FAERT 5 R I AR s 48 2 5 48 i o+
181,500,058, 784 % ( & — U4 :
1,499,792,3758% ) B #t L 4E B N B 17
o 2 AT ) 52 1 R s I P 40 4 4 T LA
o
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B % —EF—HE+ - A=1+—HIL4FE

16.LOSS PER SHARE (continued) 16. 5 R H (4)
The amounts of diluted loss per share are the same WZFE—NAERZF—UE+FZH
as basic loss per share as there were no potential s el = I L N ﬁ Z VB
dilutive ordinary shares outstanding as at 31 78 B > ik A B A Y 1R <5 A B A I
December 2015 and 2014. K g FEAH [E] -
17.FURNITURE, FIXTURES AND 1745 8~ % B K ek i
EQUIPMENT
Leasehold Furniture Office Motor
improvements  and fixtures equipment vehicle Total
iVt ES HRREE W 5 e M R at
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
COST A
At 1 January 2014 WoZ—NE—H—H 4,095,598 824,124 831,091 - 5,751,413
Additions nE 765,356 2,024 208,945 480,000 1,456,325
Disposals i - - - (480,000) (480,000)
At 31 December 2014 and REZF-NEFZA=ZF—HE
1 January 2015 “E-HE—H—H 4,860,954 826,148 1,040,636 - 6,727,738
Additions WE - - - - -
Disposals & = = = = =
At 31 December 2015 R_Z-HET_A=1—H 4,860,954 826,148 1,040,636 = 6,727,738

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Rk i R
AND IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2014 RZFE—lE——H 134,890 27,241 158,177 - 320,308
Charge for the year MR 925,772 164,926 197,239 22,194 1,310,131
Eliminated on disposals A H A R B - - - (22,194) (22,194)
At 31 December 2014 and RZZ—-NEFZA=+—HEK

1 January 2015 “EZ-HF-A-H 1,060,662 192,167 355,416 - 1,608,245
Charge for the year AR FEABR 972,191 165,230 180,119 - 1,317,540
At 31 December 2015 REZZ—H%E+ZA=1—R 2,032,853 357,397 535,535 - 2,925,785
CARRYING AMOUNTS I i
At 31 December 2015 RE=Z-HE+ZA=1—H 2,828,101 468,751 505,101 - 3,801,953
At 31 December 2014 R-F-NEF-A=+—H 3,800,292 633,981 685,220 - 5,119,493
During the year, the directors of the Company NIV /NS o mu?fb BA AR - %
considered that no impairment loss is required for BRI AN T E (g &
the furniture, fixtures and equipment (2014: HK$niD). IT)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % — % —f4E+ A =1+—HILFE

18.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

18. 3% o> e AE 5T A\ R 3 2 M 5% &

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS B
2015 2014
“R-HE F U
HK$ HK$
7 T
Non-current asset: Ik i B B
Financial assets designated as at 18 & & #& /A AEEF AE#E 2
FVTPL W5 & = 25,055,044 50,648,586
Current assets: B B
Financial assets designated as at  $8 & /& /A A MEEFT AH 5 2
FVTPL WA G - 24,953,378
Financial assets designated HEBIFEEEZ M EE
as held for trading 38,656,800 33,306,000
38,656,800 58,259,378
2015 2014
“R-HE F U
HK$ HK$
7 T
Financial assets designated WEREAREMAGABEGZ
as at FVTPL: S 5
Unlisted equity investments F T RA R E
Non-current assets B EE 25,055,044 50,648,586
Current assets ) - 24,953,378
25,055,044 75,601,964
Financial assets designated as 1 5€ 2 ¥¢ 1 H & 2 W 8 & 5 :
held for trading:
Equity investment listed in AU B2 IR E
Hong Kong
Non-current assets I i B G - -
Current assets TE) EE 38,656,800 33,306,000
38,656,800 33,306,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % —F —HF T+ A=+ —HIEF

18.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

The total carrying amount of the financial assets

18. 1% o S AE FH A H 42 2 % &
B (4

designated as held for trading pledged to the

securities broker was approximately HK$38,657,000

AP T 78 77

45k 2 1 E B R IR B

VT M

W BS & i 2 R TH (48 %8 £938,657,000
# L (- F —PU4E : £933,306,000%

(2014: approximately HK$33,306,000). JT) °
The Group had the following equity investments: REBEA T I ZRAERE :
As at 31 December 2015 BoE-nET A=+
Dividend
Unrealised Net assets received/
Place of Effective (loss) gain attributable receivable
Name of registration/ Number of ~shareholding Carrying arising on Exchange  Fair value/ tothe  during the
Notes investee company incorporation shares held interest amount  revaluation loss market value  investments year
i i 2 WA B
) FRuh ZAEB MR/ BEAWZ  ERCR/
Wit HZREAAAR Bl /MR Bre i 8 A T i et (B b I LG 4 i 5 i e A b BB
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
#i #7 #7 #7 #7 #7
Unlisted equity investments
FEWRARE
(@) E-Com Holdings Pre. Ltd. Singapore 1,259,607 23.70% 27,073,124 (7,092,423)  (1,579,119) 18,401,582 3,038,660 -
E-Com Holdings Pte. Ltd. A
(b)  Vaca Energy, LLC United States of America 1,322,843 6.33% 23,575,462  (16,902,921) (19,079) 6,653,462 336,258 -
Vaca Energy, LLC FHBARE
Listed equity investment
iR A%
(d)  Tech Pro Technology Development  Cayman Islands 21,840,000 0.33% 33,306,000 5,350,800 - 38,656,800 4,012,171 -
Limited
EERERARAR MR E
As at 31 December 2014 R_FE-NE+_A=+—
Dividend
Net assets received/
Place of Effective Unrealised attributable receivable
Name of registration/ Number of  shareholding Acquisition  gain arising Exchange Fair value/ to the during the
Notes  investee company incorporation shares held interest cost  on revaluation (loss) gain ~ market value  investments year
LR
, - ‘ il Tl By ARRE/  BEARZ  EREN/
Wit BXRELALR Bt/ A% B et WA ZARRNE  (BR) & it (A R R 2
HKS$ HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
7 T i3 T 7 i
Unlisted equity investments
FEWRARK
(2)  E-Com Holdings Pte. Ltd. Singapore 1,259,607 23.70% 24,677,600 3,819,047 (1,424,123) 27,073,124 2,957,424 -
E-Com Holdings Pte. Ltd. Hms
(b)  Vaca Energy, LLC United States of America 1,322,843 6.34% 23,291,557 303,842 (19,937) 23,575,462 5,309,805 -
Vaca Energy, LLC FHELR
(@] New Tai Ming Investments Hong Kong 210 7.00% 23,310,000 1,639,221 4157 24,953,378 4,560,237 -
International Limited
HARBKERARAR Fi
Listed equity investment
EigAR R
(d)  Tech Pro Technology Development ~Cayman Islands 5,460,000 0.35% 17,622,160 15,083,840 = 33,306,000 4,500,570 =

Limited

EERNERARAA

RERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #% %

—HEFZH=F IR

18.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

124

E-Com Holdings Pte. Ltd. (“E-Com”) is a private company
incorporated in Singapore which principally engaged in
provision of Chinese e-learning platforms for the primary
schools in Singapore and other Asian regions. No dividend

was declared or received during the year (2014: HK$nil).

the

unaudited consolidated net profit attributable to equity

For the financial year ended 31 December 2015,

holders of E-Com was approximately $$211,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,185,000) (2014: audited consolidated net
loss approximately $$3,871,000, equivalent to approximately
HK$23,648,000). As at 31 December 2015,

consolidated net assets attributable to the equity holders

its unaudited

was approximately S$2,340,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$12,821,000) (2014:
approximately S$$2,129,000, equivalent to approximately
HK$12,478,000).

audited consolidated net assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group held more
than 20% of the effective shareholding interest in E-Com. The
investment in E-Com was not accounted for as associate as
the Group had not exercise any significant influence over the
financial and operating policies in E-Com or to participate
in the policy-making processes. Accordingly, investment in
E-Com has been designated upon initial recognition as a

financial assets at FVTPL.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the carrying amount of
the Group’s interest in the shares of E-Com exceeded 10% of

the total assets of the Group.

18. % 2 A aT A H % 2 M B &
B (#)
btk

(a)

E-Com Holdings Pte. Ltd. ([E-Com ] ) J#
B GE MRS 2 AAAT > FERE L
ST 00 38 R Al 9 St B 2 /)N B A 4 R ST
45T 2R o AR TNE S R S U B
(ZF—4E: WD) -

BE-Z—-HAFET-H=1—H I
AEE *%%%&E—Com EARTER N EAL 47
A FIE I A 211,000 ik T (FH 26 &
1,185,000% J6) (& — P4 4F « 48 9 1% 45
A G 1875 B A3,871,0008T Il 3 00 - AHAE 7R
#123,648,0004570) A —EF—HFE+T A
=+ —H o S REEGAR A NS
b4 R W HL 492,340,000 N3 (41 4
i %912,821,000% 70) (& — U 4F « 48 5%
W 4 TR R 492,129,000385 1 3% 7T M
R #112,478,000%5 96 ) -

A K > AR 4 RS A E-Com A 29 I
HE HE £5 68 #820% ° A E-Com M) # & A & A
H% 2 TR W 2 ) R 6 AR 4R A E-Com % 3 AT
o] A AT {1 B K % 28 B S Sk A 7 IR B
S BEPFAER - JEIE > A E-Com I EH)

YCHERBIRF 5 7€ /5 e xR B (E R AR 42 2
BEE -
R E-RER EF-NEFH =+

H > 2% 45 M iR E-Com A% HE HE 25 2 IR T {E 48
A A T B R A 10% ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % %

—HAFEFZH=+ - HIREREE

18.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(©

Vaca Energy, LLC (“Vaca”) is a private company incorporated
in USA which principally engaged in the crude oil and
natural gas exploitation, development, production and
operations in California, USA. No dividend was declared or

received during the year (2014: HK$nil).

For the financial year ended 31 December 2015, the
unaudited consolidated net loss attributable to equity holders
of Vaca was approximately US$10,241,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$79,383,000) (2014: unaudited consolidated
net loss approximately US$7,336,000,
approximately HK$56,897,000). As at 31 December 2015,

its unaudited consolidated net assets attributable to the

equivalent to

equity holders was approximately US$685,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$5,309,000) (2014: unaudited consolidated
net assets approximately US$10,925,000, equivalent to
approximately HK$84,750,000).

As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of the Group’s
interest in the shares of Vaca is less than 10% (2014:

exceeded 10%) of the total assets of the Group.

New Tai Ming Investments International Limited (“NTM”)
is a private investment holding company incorporated in
Hong Kong which has two subsidiaries incorporated in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). It is principally
engaged in environmental projects and sewage treatment
with core operations of designing, manufacturing, integrating
and installing, testing and commissioning and providing
maintenance systems for water treatment, purification and
desalination and technologies in sulphur and pollutant
removal. No dividend was declared or received during the
year (2014: HK$nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company
has entered into a sale and purchase agreement with the
Purchaser to dispose Clear Gold, which holds Interest in
NTM. The details of the Disposal Transaction are set out in

note 21 of the consolidated financial statements.
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18. %A AEMEFINBEGEZ MEE

giﬁ (»E)
gt ()

(b)

(©

Vaca Energy, LLC ([Vaca |) A £ B &R
B G A RS 2 AN ] o A 55 B

e g i B R SR SRCHD 4R - PR EE - E?u&ﬁ‘
A o AF N B E IR SRCBUBE, (=& —
A FPIL) o

ﬁk§ —HET A=+ HILEE

A B *2‘“¥1’%V4Ldﬂxzfihﬁ/\1??{£ R
A 18 1 B £910,241,0003% 00 (H0 45 i £
79,383,0008 70) ( ZF — P4 : RACHAZ
45 A AR T B 407,336,000 UG - AHAE R K
56,897,000 70) A —F —HAE+ A
=T —H R ATEE N
4 %?{%?2’3685 0003 JG (AH % 4 )
5,309,000% 78) (=& — U4 : Rk K8 %
Foe s %éh‘a’%ﬁ%loazs,ooo%m ]
84,750,000 7)) °

W oE—HAEFT+ A=+ —H > RERP
Vaca B HERE £ 2 W 1 (B /D i A 4E | Y SE
FE10% ( & —PU4E  #Bi10% )

EPNUEE S T R TAIIE PN DN S
W RE S 2 RN E)CH A T ]
e N R IEANE ([ B ) 5 Aoz 2 Bt
JBRD) o EEAEH IR ERIRIE B A5 K R
SR R SR R AR R Wl
F el K B - L R KGRI HE B R &R
DA K {7 R B R A% 180 35 B AT o A 7R AR

HIRSOIBBR (=& — 4 ZiETT)

BREF—HFETL A=+ —HIEFEE
N > ARy ) B 5 AT 5L E ?"’T&%Hﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ
(HFr AR IIMELS) © thE 28 5 whal ®OR

SRR PAES R M RE21 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #% %
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18.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d

126

Tech Pro Technology Development Limited (“Tech Pro”)
(Stock code: 3823) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange. It is principally engaged in
manufacturing and sale of LED lighting products, provision
of services for energy efficiency projects and provision of

property sub-leasing and management services.

During the year, Tech Pro has subdivided each (1) existing
issued and unissued share of HK$0.01 of Tech Pro into four
(4) subdivided shares of HK$0.0025 each. Thus, the number
of shares held by the Company has increased from 5,460,000
to 21,840,000.

According to the latest published results announcement of
Tech Pro, the audited consolidated net loss from ordinary
activities attributable to owners of Tech Pro for the year
ended 31 December 2015 was approximately RMB192,208,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$238,261,000) (2014: audited
consolidated net loss approximately RMB216,852,000,
equivalent to approximately HK$273,472,000) and the basic
loss per share was RMB2.99cents (equivalent to HK$3.71cents)
(2014: RMB3.69cents, equivalent to HK$4.65cents). As at 31
December 2015, the audited consolidated net asset value was
approximately RMB1,005,712,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,200,870,000) (2014:
approximately RMB1,009,617,000, equivalent to approximately
HK$1,272,784,000).

audited consolidated net assets

18.#% 4 fu fE A 5t A\ 18 #5245 &
B (4
Wik s (4

(d

PEER B RARA A (S ] B m R
9%+ 3823) A B 2 A B R AL A R S A
PRITAE L Al > PR A7 8 Mg 32 7 bl o e
ZAE FLED R B EE A S e Y B B 4 -
A3 RE VR 2 TH I M s B4R A ) 2 00 B
B PR o

AR IR > 7S R AR B O AT MR B AT R
T {E0.01% 7T 19 1 1 B — B COP7 40 4 1Y
JB () I T {BL0.025 5 I8 i 13« B Ut > A
o | R I B H5,460,000 8% 3 i &
21,840,000J1% »

8 18 B om B e R M > SRR E
F—hE+ A =+ HILEEES S
AL %7 A 5 18 TR 48 £0192,208,000 A R

(FH %5 i~ £7238,261,000% 76) ( —~ZF — 11
AR K AR A i 1B B £0216,852,000
N R ¥ M S5 iR £9273,472,000% 70 ) K &

JBe i AR g 48 252,990 N R M (HH S8 R &Y

3.710 8 00) (ZF— 443690 AR
W MZE N 894,650 5 0) o A N F —
Et+ A=+ —H KERGAEE

A £91,005,712,000 A B (H %5 % 4
1,200,870,000% 76) (& —PU4F : 4855 4%
45 G RE TR RE491,009,617,000 A R 4A
2 #1,272,784,000%5 I8 )
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % —F —HF T+ A=+ —HIEF

18.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Notes: (continued)
(d) (continued)

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the carrying amount of
the Group’s interest in the shares of Tech Pro exceeded 10%

of the total assets of the Group.

The unlisted equity investments at 31 December 2015
and 2014 were, upon initial recognition, designated
by the Group as financial assets as at FVTPL. The
listed and unlisted equity investments form a group
of financial assets which are managed and their
performances are evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s investment strategy.
Their performances are regularly reviewed by the key

management personnel of the Group.

The fair value of listed equity investment is
determined based on the quoted market bid price
available on the Stock Exchange at the end of the
reporting period. The fair values of all the above
unlisted equity investments were determined
by the directors of the Company with reference
to the professional valuation carried out by
Peak Vision Appraisals Limited, an independent
qualified professional valuer. Details of the fair
value measurement are set out in note 7 of the

consolidated financial statements.

18. 3% 2 R EAE A B & 2 W B &

B (4 )
R (40
@ ()

W FE—AAEK EFE—NEF A=+ —
H o> 24 42 [ 7 735 A M AR 45 2 R T (7 28
AL B EE10% -

MZFE—HER_F-NFE+_H
E+—Hz#£ﬁ%$&§%%iﬁ
i I R A 4 B 4 E A 12 8 R (E R A
Bt < BB EE o bl KR B A
BEAN A B EE > RIEAEH
BB WS AR N oA (5 A B e T
fEHEXH - FEEZRAGHASE
LIPS PN PRI S

BT BEABE 2 A SRR AE T AR R
SRS W 5 T 2 T 8 A R A R E
Eipr A I EW A BE 2 A e fE A
HMAAFAERKZER/ LA ERE
S A (L R 3 B T il PR RlE AT 2
S A (E 18 2 o 0 OB B R B 0 RE A
T &7 TS i R B LT -

19.DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 19. ¥4 K Y8 1) 5% 8
2015 2014
—HE  ZFENF
HK$ HK$
o n T
Rental and utility deposits 4B F2 oK %4 2,272,517 2,265,117
Prepaid service fee TE A R 5 85,119 50,852
2,357,636 2,315,969
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % — % —f4E+ A =1+—HILFE

20.CASH AND BANK BALANCES 20. 3 & J AT & R
2015 2014
—R-ngE  —E-NE
HK$ HK$
Deposits with banks SRATHE K 142,059 80,606
Cash in hand JEL A7 B 4 3,461 6,435
145,520 87,041
Included in cash and cash equivalents in the LRe BB R DR N 2 Bl T B4 5
consolidated statement of financial position are the Yo L35 T 51 DA AE [ BT B A B O e R
following amounts denominated in a currency other DIAbE WG E 2 &5

than the functional currency of the group entity to

which they related:

2015 2014
—HAE ST
RMB N 684 684
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % —F —HF T+ A=+ —HIEF

21.ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR 21. 0 A B2 EE AR S

SALE AND DEPOSIT RECEIVED IN
ADVANCE

2015 2014
—HAE CFUE
HK$ HK$
# T T
Asset disposed of: B E
Financial assets at FVTPL A REMEF ARG Z
S E 24,930,413 -
Non-refundable deposit received: T WHAS A R 1] 2 % 4
Deposit received in advance i W E R R
for the financial assets
to be disposed of 8,155,980 -

On 24 March 2015, the Company entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with the purchaser
(“Purchaser”), pursuant to which the Company
agreed to sell to the Purchaser the entire issued
and fully paid ordinary share of Clear Gold Limited
(“Clear Gold”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, which holds 7.00% equity interest
(the “Interest”) in NTM, at the consideration of
US$3,500,000 (“Disposal Transaction”).

The Company has received a non-refundable deposit
of HK$8,155,980 (equivalent to US$1,050,000) during
the year and subsequent to the end of the reporting
period, the Purchaser has settled the remaining
consideration, amounting to HK$19,000,000
(equivalent to US$2,450,000), in cash and the
transaction was completed in March 2016.

The Disposal Transaction had not been completed as
at 31 December 2015 and the carrying amount of the
Interest in NTM of approximately HK$24,930,000 was
classified as assets held for sale.

As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of the
Group’s interest in the shares of NTM exceeded 10%
of the total assets of the Group.

Annual Report 2015 4E#t

=t

AR —FAEZAZFMHH > AL F B
BhH (THF T EE Wk 5k
AAFRIFBEME T HEHSARAA
(&) 28T RSk (5
RANFEEHAMME A A KR
R B7.00% M8 A 4 ([HE# ) ) R
[ /%3,500,000% 70 ([HERS])

RN R ECE IR A% A A R B IR
B30% A ] 4R 1] 2 #% 428,155,980% JT
(FH 4 21,050,000 JT) » B DA Bl &
19 000,000%5 76 (AH %% 142,450,000 3%

Jo) FETE R ERAAE L ZE G i —F N AR
:H 56 A

HEZTSRER _F—HE+ A
= H 58 BT K BA R RE &5 R T (E
#124,930,000 T I B TFHE B2 &
o

WoFE—HET A =1T—H K%

] 7 ST R B S A AR 25 2 I T (AR A A
LEWBEEL0% °
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % — % —f4E+ A =1+—HILFE

22.CREDITORS AND ACCRUED EXPENSES 22 FEAT 3k JH R TP E A

2015 2014
R -HE RN
HK$ HK$
Accrued expenses TE 2 2 6,028,400 5,767,539
Other payables L Ath, B A R IH 500,000 430
6,528,400 5,767,969
23.LOANS FROM A DIRECTOR 23. EHZHK
2015 2014
—hAE — &4
HK$ HK$
# U T
Loans advanced o R 11,593,184 2,100,000
Loan interest payable JRE A B R B 317,697 =
11,910,881 2,100,000
The loans obtained from Mr. Hu were unsecured, AR H A Y B K A S R 4 [
bearing fixed interest rate at 6% per annum and AR 6%t B I R — 4 B R o
repayable within one year.
The directors of the Company consider that the AAREFRLHEF Z IR E(E
carrying amounts of the loans from a director BN OB (AR A

approximate their fair values.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B % —EF—HE+ - A=1+—HIL4FE

24.CORPORATE BONDS 24. 2 wAlfE %
The corporate bonds recognised in the consolidated R 5 A IR DL R 2 2 Rl E 25 Host
statement of financial position are calculated as =R/
follows:

Unlisted bond Unlisted bond Unlisted bond

(“Bond I”) (“Bond II"”) (“Bond III”) Total
P L7 I b e 7 I L g 7
(ME51]) (ME%1]) ([M& % ]) At
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
T T 7T W 7T
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢)
(Wita) (Wfith) (Wit
At 1 January 2015 WZE—HF—H—H - - - -
Principal value of the Bond EHRNWHER A% H
on initial recognition 10,000,000 3,000,000 10,000,000 23,000,000
Direct transaction costs R Y %S (1,410,000) (855,000) (1,900,000) (4,165,000
8,590,000 2,145,000 8,100,000 18,835,000
Effective interest expenses HA BB
(Note 11) (Mfit11) 844,719 186,108 402,267 1,433,094
Interest paid ESE0 - (75,616) - (75,616)
At 31 December 2015 RZF D4
+ZH=Z+—H 9,434,719 2,255,492 8,502,267 20,192,478

The effective interest rate of the Bond I, II and III are B LRI B B A F] 25 Al A

10.43%, 21.58% and 10.73% per annum respectively. 10.43%, 21.58%10.73% °

Notes: M T -

(a) During the year, the Company issued an unsecured corporate (@) AN AR T S AR ) — % ST
bond to an independent private investor through the placing FLN G & BEAT T A 42 410,000,000 78
agent at a principal amount of HK$10,000,000 with effective A 2 AR R F — T — N
date from 29 January 2015 which is repayable on the date ZHJUH AR AT H RS A=
falling 3 years from the date of issue of the corporate bond, FoRMH A - FE - NFEF—-HZTJIH
which is 29 January 2018 (the “Maturity Date I"). (r8i ALl
Bond I carries a fixed interest rate at 5% per annum payable B F5 14 [ 58 47 R 3R 5% w1 > FLE R R4 —
annually in arrears on 29 January in each year (“Interest A+ IJLA A (TR HEL]) - 58—
Payment Date I"), provided that the first Interest Payment R EMAKHIER F—RNEF—H 1
Date I shall fall on 29 January 2016 and the final repayment H S A Bt 458 7 AT L 7 21 H 13 A ©

of the interest shall be on the Maturity Date 1.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #% %

—HEFZH=F IR

24.CORPORATE BONDS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b) During the year, the Company issued an unsecured corporate

(©)

132

bond to an independent private investor through the placing
agent at a principal amount of HK$3,000,000 with effective
date from 17 March 2015 which is repayable on the date
falling 7 years from the date of issue of the corporate bond,
which is 17 March 2022 (the “Maturity Date II”). The
Company has the right to redeem the outstanding principal
amount, in whole or in part, of Bond II at any time before
the Maturity Date II (the “Redemption Right I") with at
least 5 clear business days written notice, but the bondholder
has no right to require the Group to redeem Bond II before

the Maturity Date II.

Bond II carries a fixed interest rate at 5% per annum payable
semi-annually in arrears on 17 March and 17 September
in each year (“Interest Payment Date II"), provided that
the first Interest Payment Date II shall fall on 17 September
2015 and the final repayment of the interest shall be on the
Maturity Date II.

During the year, the Company issued an unsecured corporate
bond to an independent private investor through the placing
agent at a principal amount of HK$10,000,000 with effective
date from 15 July 2015 which is repayable on the date falling
7 years from the date of issue of the corporate bond, which
is 15 July 2022 (the “Maturity Date III"). The Company
has the right to redeem the outstanding principal amount, in
whole or in part, of Bond III at any time before the Maturity
Date 1I (the “Redemption Right II”) with at least 5 clear
business days written notice, but the bondholder has no right
to require the Group to redeem Bond III before the Maturity
Date III.

Bond IIT carries a fixed interest rate at 7% per annum payable
annually in arrears on 15 July in each year (“Interest
Payment Date III”), provided that the first Interest Payment
Date III shall fall on 15 July 2016 and the final repayment of
the interest shall be on the Maturity Date III.

24. A& F ()
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24.CORPORATE BONDS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d

On initial recognition, the directors consider that the
principal amount of Bond I, II and III approximate their fair

values.

The Redemption Right T and II (collectively named as
‘“Redemption Rights”) are regarded as embedded
derivatives in the host contract. The Redemption Rights are
not recognised in the consolidated financial statements since
the directors consider that the probability of exercise of the
Redemption Rights are remote. The directors have assessed
the fair values of the Redemption Rights at initial recognition
with reference to the professional valuation carried out by
Peak Vision Appraisals Limited, an independent qualified
professional valuer, and consider that the fair values
were insignificant. Accordingly, both fair values were not
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements as at

31 December 2015.

25.SHARE CAPITAL

24. VA% (H)

Mtat - (4)

(D

T 0 U R > R A R TR IIII AR

SRAE N REEAA
JEE (] ME T R T (0 A TR Il E ) 158 A 2
AT A MEIE\_ HRHE SRR AT

{;‘Eﬁ*lil’féZT B L Bl - R N T NI R

B T AR T R o TR P TR R > T
%%é%%‘?%i%E*ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁllﬂa%ﬁﬂé
A7 BR 2 RIEAT 2 B A (E 52 2 Al B (el
ZARBEGAEZ WL R —F—H
FEFZAZT - AWE 2N AEEN R
R A AR R A -

25. B A

Number of Number of
ordinary ordinary
shares shares of
Notes  of HK$0.1 each HK$0.0125 each HK$
15 i 1 5 i T {E
0.1 0.0125% L Z
Jigi3 E s HE 38 It % H Wt
Authorised: Y
At 1 January 2014 B F—ME—H—H 10,000,000,000 = 1,000,000,000
Share subdivision J8e 1 4 (10,000,000,000)  80,000,000,000 =
At 31 December 2014, /g S I 12
1 January 2015 and T+ZHA=+—H>
31 December 2015 R -HHE—H—HR
ZE N
+-HA=+—H - 80,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Issued and fully paid: T AT R
At 1 January 2014 o EF—E—H—H 187,392,590 = 18,739,259
Exercise of bonus warrants A7 {41 1] 52 1 e a 114,758 = 11,476
Share subdivision Ji 17347 4 b (187,507,348) 1,500,058,784 =
At 31 December 2014, /g S I 2
1 January 2015 and +ZH=+—H>
31 December 2015 ZE-hE—H—HR
ZE T
+ZHA=+—H - 1,500,058,784 18,750,735
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25.SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

In last year, the movements in the Company’s share

capital are as follows:

(a)

(b)

114,758 new shares of HK$0.10
each were issued on the exercise of warrants

issued by the Company on 30 April 2012 (the

In last year,

“Warrant”) at the subscription price of HK$0.39
per Warrant. All outstanding Warrants had
expired on 29 April 2014 and the Company had
no outstanding Warrants as at 31 December 2015

and 2014.

On 19 November 2013, the Company proposed
to subdivide each existing issued and unissued
shares of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of
the Company into eight subdivided shares of
HK$0.0125 each (the “Share Subdivision”).
Subject to and upon the Share Subdivision
becoming effective, the Board proposed to
change the board lot size for trading on the
Stock Exchange from 10,000 shares to 20,000
subdivided shares. The resolution proposed was
passed by the shareholders on the extraordinary
general meeting on 12 December 2013 and

effective from 4 December 2014.

26.SHARE OPTION SCHEME
The Company’s share option scheme (the “2005

Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution

passed on 7 February 2005 for the primary purpose

of providing incentives to directors and eligible

employees and expired on 7 February 2015. The

Company does not have any outstanding options
granted under the 2005 Scheme.
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26.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

A new share option scheme was adopted by
members of the Company on 22 May 2015 (the
‘2015 Scheme”). The purpose of the 2015 Scheme
is to reward and provide incentives to eligible
participants and encourage them to contribute to
the Group. Under the 2015 Scheme, the Board may
at their discretion, at any time following the date
of the adoption of the 2015 Scheme but before the
tenth anniversary of that date, grant share options
to eligible participants, including directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries and any other persons
including consultants, advisors, agents, customers,

suppliers, etc. to subscribe for shares in the

Company.

The exercise price of share options is the highest of
the nominal value of the shares, the closing price
of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of
offer of the grant and the average closing price of the
shares on the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of offer of the
grant. An offer of an option shall be deemed to
have been accepted within 30 days from the date
of offer upon acceptance of the option duly signed
by the grantee together with a remittance of HK$1.
The maximum number of securities available for
issue under the 2015 Scheme shall not exceed 10%
of the issued capital of the Company. The maximum
entitlement of each grantee in any 12-month period
is limited to 1% of the ordinary shares in issue of the
Company. The option period will not be more than
ten years from the date of grant of the option and the
Board may at its discretion determine the minimum
period for which the option has to be held or other
restriction before the exercise of the subscription

right attaching thereon.

During the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014,

no option was granted, exercised or cancelled.
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PER SHARE 27. 5 I B A
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the net asset
value per share of the Company was HK$0.03

27.NET ASSET VALUE

and HK$0.07 respectively. The calculation of net

asset value per share is based on the net asset
value of the Group as at 31 December 2015 of
approximately HK$48,160,000 (2014: approximately

HK$108,562,000) and on
ordinary shares of HK$0

of HK$0.0125 each).

the number of 1,500,058,784

.0125 each in issue as at 31
December 2015 (2014: 1,

500,058,784 ordinary shares

N oE—AER _F—NE+ A

=t —H ARAAZEREEFES
Al £50.03% 70 K 0.07# I » B & E
FEEAEEP _F—AFE+ A
=+ —HZ &EFHA48,160,00045 7T
(& — VU4 : £9108,562,0004 ) K&
A E—FAEF A=+ —HE BT
B ] T {H0.0125% 7 #91,500,058,784
M ( ZF—PUAE BT (H0.0125
I 191,500,058, 784 48 i ) 714 -

28.OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 28. 88 M A R I
The Group as lessee A4 AR 2 R LN
2015 2014
RN —F U4
7 T
Minimum lease payments SN FIE H R IE RS
paid under operating A EAT 2z Fe R 4 -
leases during the year:
— office equipment o VNES ] 40,000 35,092
— office premises — WA EYE 8,177,899 7,977,433
8,217,899 8,012,525
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28.OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

29.

(continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of

office premises and rented office equipment which

28. BB M A R ()

A AR > AR 4R 1R 48 R AT B A8
ERARHERAZHZ MM AEY
SETERYE 2 KRR AR &30 3 0 H &1
G N

fall due as follows:

Office equipment

Office premises

2015 2014 2015 2014

ZE-hE ZE A G Sk Xid ZE A

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

Wt BT W T

Within one year —4ER 42,000 38,400 3,418,285 8,014,187
In the second to fifth years BRI

inclusive (B ERWE) 84,672 115,200 4,371 3,296,032

126,672 153,600 3,422,656 11,310,219

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group for its office equipment and office
premises. Operating leases are negotiated and

payments are fixed for an average of 2 years.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015, margin facility of
approximately HK$19,328,000 (2014: approximately
HK$16,653,000) from a regulated securities broker
was granted to the Group under which financial
assets at FVTPL of approximately HK$38,657,000
(2014: approximately HK$33,306,000) were treated as
collateral for the facilities granted. No margin facility
has been utilised by the Group as at 31 December
2015 (2014: niD.
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5 8 4919,328,000% JC ( & — P 4E
#116,653,000%5 7C) - & N o EAE
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30.RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

138

Defined benefit plan

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 (HK$25,000
prior to June 2014). Contributions to the plan vest

immediately.

The total costs charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
in the sum of approximately HK$267,000 (2014:
approximately HK$308,000) represents contributions
payable to the MPF scheme in Hong Kong.

30.

B g5 A w3
I8 Pk 4 5t

A5 B AR A s o T S TR R
191 4% R R 15 91 T B 2 (B B 2 &
s AR ([EEERE]) -
5 FE 4w E A9 48 E A POR IR FHE B 18
S 2 RE N HL o AR R R RE &R

i 3= F HAR B ZH 45 B Ak 1 18 B AH B i
A WI5%8 51 E A b BR 2 A0 B A H ik
A30,000% 76 ( = F — P04 X H A A
25,0004 70) © &% w# ALK B RE R T o

A G5 A 1R AR K L A T IR 4R 3R 0 BR
2 A BEE #9267,0009 00 ( —F — Y
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31.RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a) Transactions

31. [0 5 B 82
@ &5
AREE PR FENEREHH FER

The Group had the following significant related

party transactions during the year which were A R HEAT T 5 H K Y BB 5 32
carried out in the normal course of the Group’s VE
business:
Name of related party Nature of transaction 2015 2014
I3 4Ly 4 o E I Sk TR 2 —ZF—F
HKS$ HKS$
i 7o i 7T
Blue Star Consultancy fee (Note 1) - 197,419
BT B & (it
Investment management fee
(Note 2) 2,278,758 1,233,290
BEEIE (Mit2)
Mr. Hu Loan interest expenses
(Note 3) 317,697 -
LB BEH BB ST (723
Ms. Li Yunshan Consultancy fee (Note 4) 560,000 821,429
FEMat W & (W it4)
Bluesea Energy Holdings Limited Proceeds from disposal of a
motor vehicle (Note 5) - 480,000
B REVR P2 SR R A A A — I T A5 2 BKE
(Wtits)
Enerchine Investment Investment management fee
Management Limited (Note 6) - 178,900

BEREE A RA A

REEHE (M6
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31.RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(continued)

(a) Transactions (continued)

140

Notes:

M

@)

3

Consultancy fee is paid to Blue Star for a term of three
months commencing from 3 March 2014, to provide
investment consultancy services to the Company. This

consultancy agreement was terminated on 12 May 2014.

Blue Star is wholly owned by a company indirectly
owned by Mr. Hu. Blue Star, being an associate of Mr.
Hu, is a connected party of the Company pursuant to

the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the investment management agreement
dated 27 March 2014 made between Blue Star and the
Company, the Company pays Blue Star an investment
management fee for the period from 13 May 2014 to
31 December 2016 payable monthly in HK Dollars in
advance at 2% per annum of the net asset value of the
Company on the basis of the actual number of days

elapsed in the relevant month.

Blue Star is deemed to be a connected party of the

Group pursuant to Rule 14A.08 of the Listing Rules.

The loans from a director were unsecured and
repayable on or before the maturity date with fixed
interest rate at 6% per annum. Details are set out in

note 23 of the consolidated financial statements.

The transaction is exempted from the connected
transaction requirements under Rule 14A.90 of the

Listing Rules.

31. BT Wik (4

(a) 5&5 (/‘E
Bt -
(D) HIOF—D4EZH = A AT

@

3

1 Ry =M A U%%ﬁﬁ%‘%ﬁf’ﬂﬂﬁ
B o o W] i el O —F — I 4E 1 A
T A&

BT e MR 2 A R
A Mg BT RLAL BE TR A S R
BN BARE Z BN

MR B 57 B AR Ay R B ] S B A —
Z-WE=ZA -+ LAZHEER
e - AR 2% F M 1) BE S0 AR A R
Bl EF-NELAF=HE "%
=N TH =+ BRI T
JURHAR AT > SRR R A A /B E
TH 2 4 2%2% > LA RO B A 3 2 L
ZHEBRYEH -

A% T B R I 14A.08 > BE F R
By A SE 1) 2 BRE Ty o
A 2 O MR KT R B B s

Z A 52 8 R AE A 6%t B o FE
RS f o P R R 23 o

AR E LRI 14A. 90 %] B 7 22 5
B ESR o BEAS By R HEH B o
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31.RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(continued)

(a) Transactions (continued)

Notes: (continued)

D

(©6)

Consultancy fee has been paid to a non-executive
director, Ms. Li Yunshan (“Ms. Li") commencing from 1
January 2014 was HK$120,000 per month and reduced
the consultancy fee to HK$80,000 with effective from 1
March 2014. The consultancy agreement was terminated

effective from 16 November 2015.

Ms. Li was the technical adviser of APAC, the ultimate
holding company of the Company. Ms. Li graduated
with two master’s degrees in Industrial and Systems
Engineering and Petroleum Engineering from the
University of Southern California in 2008 and 2011
respectively. The management believes that Ms. Li has
sufficient qualification and experience as a consultant

for the Company.

The transaction is exempted from the connected
transaction requirements under Rule 14A.95 of the
Listing Rules.
In last year, a motor vehicle with net book value
of approximately HK$458,000 was disposed to
Bluesea Energy Holdings Limited (“Bluesea”) at the
consideration of HK$480,000 and gain of approximately
HK$22,000. Mr. Hu is the director of Bluesea.

Enerchine Investment Management Limited (“EIML”)
is the investment manager of the Group since 3
November 2003. The investment management fee was
HK$100,000 per month with effect from 1 July 2011 and
the Company has ceased the investment management

agreement with effect from 24 February 2014.

EIML is deemed to be a connected party of the Group
pursuant to Rule 14A.08 of the Listing Rules.
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31.RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 31605 o (4E)
(continued)
(b) Balances (b) %tk
At the end of the reporting period, the amounts A AR > BB AT R 8 7 2 SRR A
due to related parties are as follows: T
2015 2014
e S 2 —R— AR
Name of related party Nature of balance HK$ HK$
B L7 44 R E # T W T
Blue Star Accrued investment
management fee 1,280,900 525,453
B JE AT 1% 8 B
Mr. Hu Loans from a director 11,910,881 2,100,000
B 5 HEZHENK

(c) Compensation of key management personnel

Remuneration for key management personnel,

including amounts paid to the Company’s

(o) HEHMAHHMH

EEEMAAZME (LT
AR R (W3R ER) 2

directors as disclosed in note 13 is as follows: BB IR
2015 2014
— HAE —E 4R
HK$ HK$
T T
Directors’ fee RS 4,915,500 5,311,000
Salaries, allowance and M R K H At E ) 4w A
other benefits in kind 1,592,000 1,760,000
Discretionary bonuses 1% {E AL 440,000 395,260
Contributions to MPF 50 A B F At 3K
Scheme 18,000 16,750
6,965,500 7,483,010
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32.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries are set out as follows:

—HAFEFZH=+ - HIREREE

3277 Bt I 2 v 2 B i
A W 7 R A

Paid up
issued/
registered
Place of ordinary Proportion ownership interest and
Name of subsidiary incorporation share capital voting power held by the Company Principal activities
Beowi/
i 1135 4 ¢
It 1 ) 2 i A 4 B e A AR H R A T HE R S B EXE 3
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
EH# fil H# fil #
2015 2015 2014 2014
ZZ2-nE ZF-nE CF-EE SF-IE
% % % %
Gold Basin Invest Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 - 100 - Investment holdings
Fik 17 R
Bounce Up Investments British Virgin Islands S$1 100 - 100 - Investment holdings
Limited
HEEEARA BB 1ETE R
King Phoenix Investments British Virgin Islands Us$1 100 - 100 - Investment holdings
Limited
BE B EA R BB 1ETE R
Clear Gold Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - 100 - Investment holdings
HeARAF BB 1ETE R
Eagle Ride Investment Singapore S§1 100 - 100 - Investment holdings
Holdings (Singapore) B ¥ B
Pe. Lid.
Energy Supreme Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 100 - 100 - Investment holdings
BB 1ETE R
Fortuneway Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 100 - 100 - Investment holdings
BB RER 1ETE R
Sunluck Investment Limited ~ British Virgin Islands Us$1 100 - 100 - Investment holdings
BB RER 1ETE R
Winning Point Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100 - 100 Inactive
BB RER 1ETE TEED

TR o5 39 R SO i At R AR S e
O T AR A R 2 R R R

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities

outstanding during or at the end of reporting period.
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33.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Subsequent to 31 December 2015,

the following

significant subsequent events took place:

(a)

(b)

(©

34.

The Company has obtained a loan from Mr. Hu
at a principal amount of HK$3,000,000 in January
2016, bearing fixed interest rate at 6% per annum

for a term of one year.

On 23 September 2015,

entered into a supplementary sale and purchase

the Company has

agreement with the Purchaser, whereby both
parties agreed that the completion of the
Disposal Transaction should take place in March
2016. The Company has received the remaining
consideration of HK$19,000,000 (equivalent
to US$2,450,000) in cash and the Disposal
Transaction is completed on the scheduled
date. The details of the Disposal Transaction
are summarised in note 21 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The Company has obtained a loan from an
independent money lending company at a
principal amount of HK$10,000,000 in January
2016, bearing fixed interest rate at 10% per

annum for a term of one year.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to

conform to the current year’s presentation.
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FINANCIAL POSITION

—HAFEFZH=+ - HIREREE

(a) Financial information of the financial

position of the Company

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fok B P 5 2% PR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % %

35.COMPANY INFORMATION OF 35. 3 v A %R Dl i 3%

(a) A 2wl W55k Ol 3 2 W 5 & B

2015 2014
R e uiKa
HK$ HK$
W W0
Non-current assets JE R B & E
Furniture, fixtures and 1R AL~ 5 B K w A
equipment 3,801,953 5,119,493
Financial assets at fair value e nEBEF ARG Z
through profit or loss W 5 18,401,582 27,073,124
Interests in subsidiaries N NG P - 302,257
22,203,535 32,494,874
Current assets i B
Financial assets at fair value s RnEEFAEG 2
through profit or loss B 38,656,800 33,306,000
Deposits and prepayments i 4 I FEAT EROA 2,296,619 2,268,599
Cash and bank balances B & O SRAT & B 35,756 14,177
40,989,175 35,588,776
Current liabilities i B £
Creditors and accrued expenses  JE A 2 IH K T8 $2 2 4,952 981 4,190,225
Deposit received in advance TH U & 8,155,980 -
Loans from a director #HR AR 11,910,881 2,100,000
25,019,842 6,290,225
Net current assets i B & R A 15,969,333 29,298,551
Annual Report 2015 4E#t 1 45



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok 3 S 255 i A B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 # % — % —f4E+ A =1+—HILFE

35.COMPANY INFORMATION OF 35. 5 H] BB IR O e (A )
FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Financial information of the financial (a) A4 w B ERR Rz BHEEB
position of the Company (#)

2015 2014
—“E-RE “Z-NUF
HK$ HK$
Wt o

Total assets less current

liabilities B 7 A T B £ 1 38,172,868 61,793,425
Non-current liability Ik W B A 1K
Corporate bonds INGIL-E 20,192,478 -
NET ASSETS S 17,980,390 61,793,425
Capital and reserves A K ik e
Share capital (Note 25) A (ffiE25) 18,750,735 18,750,735
Reserves (Note b) Ml (M Ftb) (770,345) 43,042,690
TOTAL EQUITY BE 4 AR 17,980,390 61,793,425
The statement of financial position was approved MBERALRCDR ZF—-ARNE=ZA
and authorised for issue by the Board of =t HEE R e AT
Directors on 31 March 2016 and are signed on its Al AN EF AR E
behalf by:
TUNG SHU SUN CHAN YIU PUN, CLEMENT
B B W A
Director Director
#HH HF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fok B P 5 2% PR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 % —EF—HE+ " A=1—HIL4FE

35.COMPANY INFORMATION OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company

35. 0% W) B 5 IR DL ¥ & (A7)

(b) 2wl il i 52 B

Capital
Share redemption  Accumulated

premium reserves losses Total

PRedy it A ol ok A L Fid it Mt

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

BT A o 7T

At 1 January 2014 RoE—NFE—H—H 601,964,932 168,800 (487,220,703) 114,913,029
Total comprehensive &L

expenses - - (71,871,887) (71,871,887)

Exercise of bonus warrants 17 ff 4Ll 32 [ b 7 33,281 = = 33,281

Shares issue expenses AT IR B X (31,733) - = (31,733)
At 31 December 2014 and A —F— U4

1 January 2015 TZA=+t—Hk

—E—HFE—H—H 601,966,480 168,800 (559,092,590) 43,042,690
Total comprehensive AT B AR

expenses = = (43,813,035) (43,813,035)
At 31 December 2015  R-ZF 44

+-H=+—H 601,966,480 168,800  (602,905,625) (770,345)

Capital redemption reserves was derived from
the Company by repurchase its own shares
pursuant to the approval and shall not exceed
10% of the aggregate nominal of the issued
share capital of the Company within the relevant

period.

Annual Report 2015 4E#t

A P ol S R A O R A R

I VAR 0[] A B S A5

A5 > A

ANEBWANFRMEYHAE
BEAT AR AT AE 2 10% ©

147



Five Years Financial Summary

4 S R

Year ended 31 December

BE+A=+—HILEE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
“F-h¥E  ZZ-NEF ZF-=F ZF-ZF ZZ—F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
-3 W T It T W T
Results ES
Revenue i 4 - = 495,963 1,113,316 130,931
Loss before tax  FRBiHI 1 (60,402,871) (25,202,733) (67,604,792) (73,744,021) (213,916,171)
Income tax iy 1588 BH =2
expense - = - - -
Loss for the year AA R HEA A

attributable to JRE A 4F 4 s 1R
owners of the
Company (60,402,871) (25,202,733) (67,604,792) (73,744,021) (213,916,171)
Assets and Bk Al
liabilities
Total assets MG E 94,947,366 116,430,467 136,172,713 190,898,060 174,021,619
Total liabilities AL (46,787,739)  (7,867,969)  (2,420,506)  (4,714,370) (50,817,018)
Net assets B FE 48,159,627 108,562,498 133,752,207 186,183,690 123,204,601
Share capital &N 18,750,735 18,750,735 18,739,259 16,314,813 21,466,408
Reserves fiti s 29,408,892 89,811,763 115,012,948 169,868,877 101,738,193
Total equity 1 35 4 48,159,627 108,562,498 133,752,207 186,183,690 123,204,601
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